
Resources Scrutiny Commission (formerly 
Business Change and Resources Scrutiny 
Commission)

Agenda

Date:      Thursday, 28 February 2019
Time:      4.00 pm
Venue:   Room 1P05, 1st Floor - City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:

Councillors: Stephen Clarke (Chair), Afzal Shah (Vice-Chair), Donald Alexander, Mark Brain, 
John Goulandris, Margaret Hickman, Tim Kent, Sultan Khan, Graham Morris and Clive Stevens

Issued by: Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 90 36898
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 20th February 2019

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Resources Scrutiny Commission (formerly Business Change and Resources Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda

Agenda

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information 

(Pages 5 - 6)

2. Apologies for Absence 

3. Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors.  They are asked to 
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular 
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of 
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting & Action Sheet 
 To agree the minutes of the following meetings: 

o 24th September 2018
o 6th December 2018
o 10th January 2019 (Budget Scrutiny)
o 14th January 2019 (Budget Scrutiny)

 Members to consider and comment where required on the Action Sheet

(Pages 7 - 26)

5. Chair's Business 
To note any announcements from the Chair

6. Public Forum 
Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item 

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum.  The 
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at 
the back of this agenda.  Public Forum items should be emailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines 
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the 
meeting.  For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in 
this office at the latest by 5pm on Friday 22nd February 2019.

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Resources Scrutiny Commission (formerly Business Change and Resources Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  For this meeting this means that your 
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 
Wednesday 27th February 2019.

7. Work Programme 
To note the work programme. (Pages 27 - 31)

8. Performance Management 

(Pages 32 - 38)

9. Risk Register 
– Report to follow

10. Commercialisation Strategy and Programme 
To also include a verbal up-date on the Commercialisation and Innovation Working 
Group (CIWG)

(Pages 39 - 46)

11. Exclusion of Press and Public 
That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 
(respectively) of Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Act.

12. Performance Report - Quarter 3 - Part Exempt 
 This agenda item includes a Legal Services Performance Report.  Due to some of 

the information being potentially commercially sensitive, the Scrutiny Commission 
may decide at this point of the meeting to go into a closed session.  

(Pages 47 - 57)

13. ICT Systems and Strategy - Exempt 
This agenda item consists of the following papers which are to follow:

 Future State Assessment (FSA) Report   
 FSA Delivery Board – Minutes and Actions 
 Independent (third party) Report 



Resources Scrutiny Commission (formerly Business Change and Resources Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda



www.bristol.gov.uk 

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985

You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.

You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR. 

Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment

You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in 
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer.  Please give as much notice as 
possible.  We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular 
meeting.

Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment.  If you 
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.

Public Forum

Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most 
meetings.  Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting 
room one hour before the meeting.  Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk  or 
Democratic Services Section, City Hall, College Green, Bristol BS1 5UY.  The following requirements 
apply:

 The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is 
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned. 

 The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.  

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer 
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the 
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles 
that may be attached to statements.

By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and 
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will 
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a 
public record (available from Democratic Services). 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


www.bristol.gov.uk 

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details.  However, because of time 
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement 
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain.  Public Forum statements 
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s 
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.

Process during the meeting:

 Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions 
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned. 

 There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
 The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that 

your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will 
have the greatest impact.

 Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as 
short as one minute.

 If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to 
speak on the groups behalf.

 If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken 
your statement will be noted by Members.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution 

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full 
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except 
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years.  If you 
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have 
given your consent to this.  If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the 
webcasting staff.  However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means 
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and 
report on the meeting  (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be 
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others 
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 6

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution
http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/


 

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Resources Scrutiny Commission 
(formally Business Change and Resources Scrutiny 
Commission)
24th September 2018 at 3pm

Members Present:- Cllr Clarke (Chair), Cllr Goulandris, Cllr Alexander, Cllr Kent, Cllr Morris, Cllr Stevens, 
Cllr Brain, Cllr Pearce, Cllr Khan.

Officers in Attendance:- Mike Jackson, Executive Director of Resources and Head of Paid Services, 
Denise Murray, Service Director of Finance, Chris Holme, Interim Service Manager - Corporate Finance, 
Tracy Matthews - Performance Improvement Officer; Tim Borrett,  Acting Director of Policy & Strategy, 
Simon Oliver, Director - Digital Transformation; Penny Fell - Director of Commercialisation, Johanna 
Holmes – Scrutiny Advisor.

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting.

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies were received from Cllrs Hickman and Shah
The Members wished to pass their best wishes onto Cllr Shah and his family.  

3. Declarations of Interest
None 

4. Minutes of Previous Meeting
The draft minutes of the previous meeting were taken as read and approved. 

5. Chair's Business
The Chair highlighted how wide-ranging the Commission’s Terms of Reference are and asked if 
members of the Commission have specific knowledge, or particular skills or interests to let the him 
know. 
 

6. Annual Business Report
 Vice Chair of the Commission: Councillor Shah; was nominated by Councillor Goulandris, this was 

seconded by Councillor Kent. 
 The Members agreed the Commission’s two further meeting dates. 
 Members confirmed the Commission’s work programme for the year.  The Chair said that if 

anyone was interested in the Procurement Task Group to please let him know.  

7. Public Forum
None on this occasion.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



8. ICT Systems and Strategy 
(Please note that due to the confidential nature of some of the information provided to members, this 
item was taken at the end of the meeting and when members of the public were asked to leave the 
room). 

The Director - Digital Transformation introduced the item.  Members asked for clarification about why 
the information needed to be treated as confidential.  Officers replied that some of it was still in a 
draft format and therefore wasn’t currently ready for public consumption. 

The main focus of the discussion focussed upon the ‘IT Strategy 2018 – 2023’.

 Members commented that there were quite a lot of acronyms within the strategy.  There were 
also some comments about some of the language being used within the document not being 
accessible.  It was suggested by a member that if a document is to be made public officers could 
ask someone who knows little about the content to see if they understand what the document is 
trying to communicate.  The Director - Digital Transformation said that there is a communication 
strategy attached this programme and as part of that work the strategy will be reformatted 
without the acronyms and the messages will be tailored for wider audiences. 

 Oversight of the ‘Future State Assessment’ programme; given the nature of some of the 
information it needed to be established how scrutiny will be carried out going forward, as it will 
not be appropriate to publically publish some of the information.  

 It would be confirmed whether the Members would have access to the Programme Boards 
minutes going forward.  However, the Director - Digital Transformation did offer to Members that 
they would make progress reports available to the Commission.  

 A Member commented that officer’s contact details on Outlook are very often out of date which 
causes various problems and delays.  It was asked if this was a resource issue. It was explained 
that this type of issue would be addressed as part of a ‘capabilities and deficiencies organisational 
assessment’ that is to be undertaken.  

 The Chair asked why there wasn’t any mention of the role of scrutiny in the Programme 
Governance Diagram (in the Programme Board’s Terms of Reference contained in the confidential 
papers).  Officers said this was an oversight and it would be now be included. ACTION: Officers to 
ensure that Scrutiny is specifically identified in the information. 

 The Chair asked about the Programme Board and why Cllr Cheney was the only elected Member 
who sat on it. Officers said in response that it was right that Cllr Cheney was a member of the 
board and held officers to account; this was a key piece of work for him. Members said they 
weren’t completely sure that mixing up the two roles of Executive Member and Board Member 
was the correct thing to do. Officers said that there would also be an independent third-party sat 
on the board that would work as a ‘critical friend’ and provide additional strategic business and 
technical assurances.  Officers to confirm to members who this is once they have been appointed 
and if it’s possible they will come to the next meeting.  ACTION:  Officers to provide Members with 

Page 8



a progress up-date on the independent third-party board member as soon as one is available

 A Member suggested that if /when all the Members are provided with new IT equipment to 
replace the current IPads if there could be some additional support provided this time.

 It was confirmed that although the strategy is in the public domain it has not been specifically 
designed for the public.  It was also confirmed that yes there will be some activity with end users, 
super-users and some citizen engagement. 

9.  Commercialisation and Income Generation 
The Director of Commercialisation gave a short presentation (the slides are contained within the 
meeting papers).  The following key points were stated:

 Officers are working towards a Commercialisation Strategy but the scoping, and assessment needs 
to be completed before the implementation can begin.

 For this to be effective it requires a complete culture change across many parts of the 
organisation.  Officers now need to be more business focussed and be ‘business ready’

 The Council needs to be aware and measure the resources it is consuming. 
 Departmental plans need to be smart and have clear obtainable commercial objectives
 It was confirmed that both Cllr Pearce and Alexander are members of the Commercialisation & 

Innovation Working Group. 
 The council would benefit from having  an incubator process in place to help further this approach 
 The role of the Director of Commercialisation was discussed. It was explained that part of it was to 

be a mentor across the organisation.  The efficiency savings were also being monitored across the 
organisation. 

 Some areas need more encouragement to embrace change than others.  But it’s a cultural change 
that will be cascaded down through the organisation.   

Members asked the following questions:
 Members asked about ‘best value’ as described within the report and if factors other than just the 

financial ones would be made explicit.  The response was yes they would be.  
 A Member asked if there were examples of schemes that were now operating in a more ‘business 

like’ manner that the Commission could begin looking at.  The response was yes and the examples 
given were Blaise Nurseries, the built environment and fleet services).   

 A Member asked how the Planning Team had been involved to date.  Not yet was the response 
but fee structures were being looked at to make sure they were in line with other authorities and 
that managing resources within the teams was crucial i.e. the current Government Strategy asks 
if/how property developers are being supported through planning processes. This now needs to 
be assessed.

 A Member suggested that what was being described was more related to efficiency savings rather 
than generating income. In their view it didn’t sound particularly radical or seem very likely to 
generate cash.  They questioned whether the council was taking this subject seriously enough, 
especially given that the Director of Commercialisation is the only person employed to ensure this 
happens. 

 A Member suggested that some of the cultural changes that were being described might be 
difficult for some public sector workers to embrace, especially some staff that had worked at the 
Council for many years.  It was suggested that the council could do something more radical and go 
to Bristol Business School and ask the young people to help suggest some business orientated 

Page 9



ideas and then set them some challenges about how the council could generate income. 
 It was stated by an officer that it wasn’t solely about income generation but also about ‘fitting 

services to fit the fee’s’ in some cases. 
 Cllr Pearce who’s a Member of the Scrutiny Commission and who also Chair’s the 

Commercialisation & Innovation Working Group said that the Council “certainly wasn’t short of 
ideas; there are plenty of them”.  He said the biggest obstacle to delivering anything substantial 
was the lack of capacity.   

 The Director of Commercialisation said that it would be possible for the Commission to receive an 
Up-date Report from the group at their next meeting. Although it was stated that they would need 
to be careful not to give any ideas away publically. ACTION: an up-date report to be brought to 
next meeting

 It was agreed that Cllrs Pearce and Alexander would lead on this subject on behalf of the 
Commission. 

10.  Resources Directorate Quarterly Performance Report (Quarter 1 - 2018/19)
The Performance Improvement Officer introduced the report to Members.

 Members commented and officers agreed that there were rather a lot of indicators but said they 
are currently looking to reduce that number.

 It was reported that 62% of indicators are below target and that 37% are above target.  This it was 
stated was a similar position to the previous year.

 Agency spend as a % of total salary bill; it was confirmed that 20% of the Resources 8.4 % figure 
was for additional Legal Service officers and it was expected that this figure would reduce now. It 
was confirmed that this was for skilled agency workers in Legal Services for specific tasks that have 
now been completed (and not temporary unskilled work).  

 It was asked if that figure included ‘interims’.  It was confirmed it did yes.  It was stated however 
that the 5% corporate target had originally been very ambitious. 

 Members asked which indicators were likely to keep Officers awake at night; the reply was the % 
of council tax collected. 

 The Performance Improvement Officer said that she could bring what she considers to be the 
most significant indicators to the next meeting.

 There was a short discussion about whether some of the information presented was 
‘disaggregated data’ i.e. cross-cutting or directorate based information.  It was said that it would 
be made clear in future what the source of the information was and how it was calculated 
ACTION: Officers agreed to make it clear whether the information presented to members is 
directorate based or cross-cutting in future.

 A short discussion ensued about the Legal and Democratic Services section of the report.  
Members enquired specifically about Legal Service’s spend on external barristers.  Officers stated 
that the actual spending is being closely monitored, has been reduced and that external legal 
advice was only being sought when required.  ACTION: The Chair requested a representative of 
Legal Services attend the next meeting.  

 It was asked if the council still operates an internal / external charging system.  Yes was the 
response; there is a case management system that charges across the departments. 

 Members asked why the ‘Collection of Debt’ figures were not higher.  Officers said that overall the 
figure was improving but some particular times of the year were better than others for this for 
various reasons.

 “Reduce the average number of working days lost to sickness (BCC)”; current Quarter 1 figure 
stands at 9.25 days.  Members asked if it was known how much of this was long-term illness and 
whether this figure is a good way to measure overall staff morale.  Officers said they weren’t 

Page 10



convinced that this was a good way to measure staff morale but that they were doing work on 
getting on top of this situation.  It was reported that the HR Committee are also currently looking 
into this.  It was said that there is currently a lot of performance information on this subject and 
the performance team had been asked to produce an internal one-page report on this. 

 Members were divided in their views about being presented with a smaller set of indicators in 
future.  Some advocated that it was important all the information was in the public domain.  The 
Executive Director of Resources suggested that Members receive both i.e. provide all of the 
information but also include a prioritised set of indicators that sit in front of this. ACTION: Officers 
to provide both the full set of indicators and the shortened prioritised set at the next opportunity. 

 Given the level of interest the Commission has in workforce matters it was suggested that they ask 
the HR Committee to provide a report / update on ‘workforce’ at the end of the year. ACTION: 
Councillors Clarke and Stevens said they would approach the HR Committee about this

11.  Resources Directorate Risk Register Update
The Service Director – Finance introduced the report to Members.  The following questions and 
discussions ensued:

 Brexit - the general uncertainty affecting the financial markets, levels of trade & investment. The 
Members asked about a ‘no deal Brexit’ and whether contingencies plans were being developed.  
The Acting Director of Policy & Strategy confirmed that contingency plans were in train yes and 
there is also a Bristol Brexit Group coming.  The Policy Team now also have this as one their 
specific pieces of work.  It was agreed that an update paper would come to the following 
Commission meeting on this subject. ACTION: A report on Brexit contingencies plans to come to 
the next meeting. 

 The Chair raised the issue about ‘organisational leadership’ and if it was an issue for Resources 
Scrutiny or the HR Committee.  The Chair said that he would speak to the Chair of the HR 
Committee about this as well.  

 The Chair asked if it would be possible to put the risks in order of high to low risk next time.  
Officers said they would look into whether this re-formatting of the report is possible. 

 A Member asked if there was a disaster recovery and business continuity plan in place.  It was 
confirmed there is.  

12. 2018/19 Period 3 Forecast Outturn Report – Resources Extract
 Cllr Stevens gave his analysis of the report and added that it was unfortunate that the Period 4 

Report wasn’t quite ready for this scrutiny meeting.  The Service Director – Finance responded to 
Cllr Stevens interpretation and analysis of the report with some minor adjustments and points of 
clarification.

 The Service Director – Finance enquired about and if it was Resources Directorate only or was it 
also corporate? This was to be determined.  ACTION: for the role of the scrutiny commission to be 
defined with regards to scrutinising corporate finance or the Resources Directorate finances only. 

 Cllr Stevens confirmed what the scrutiny MTFP & Budget Task Group would be looking at in depth 
for the next couple of months i.e. HRA, DSG, Capital resources and risks, budget consultation, how 
the current is standing up, Adult Social Care (ASC) 18-64 years and the whole ASC budget.   

 The Service Director said that progress within the report was on track but it was important that 
this Directorate lead by example. There were still many challenges but they are being managed.

 A Member noted that there were ‘confidential’ watermarks within the reports Appendix A.  The 
Scrutiny Advisor said that she would highlight this to report authors and them to ensure they are 
removed before publication.

Page 11



CHAIR  __________________

Page 12



1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting, and made a safety announcement in relation to the 
fire/emergency evacuation procedure.

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies were received from Cllrs Steve Pearce and Marg Hickman 

3. Declarations of Interest
None 

4. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Action Sheet
Due to a technical issue with Mod.Gov and the previous meeting minutes the Chair agreed that the 
minutes of the previous meeting would be taken at the next meeting.
It was agreed the actions that were marked as complete will be removed and any outstanding actions 
would be followed up.

5. Scrutiny Work Programme 
The Members noted the Scrutiny Work Programme.

6. Chair's Business
The Chair asked the Executive Director of Resources if he would as agreed briefly explain how the 
Resources Directorate had altered particularly now that the Communities Directorate no longer 
existed. Using the Senior Leadership Structure diagram on the Source intranet Mike Jackson explained 
using the current structure diagram which can be found here: http://intranet.bcc.lan/ccm/cms-
service/stream/asset/?asset_id=18805003

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Resources Scrutiny 
Commission

6th December 2018 at 4.00 pm

Members Present:  Cllr Stephen Clarke (Chair), Cllr Afzal Shah (Vice Chair), Cllr Don Alexander, Cllr Mark 
Brain, Cllr John Goulandris, Cllr Tim Kent, Cllr Sultan Khan, Cllr Graham Morris, Cllr Clive Stevens.

Officers in Attendance: Mike Jackson, Executive Director of Resources and Head of Paid Services;  Denise 
Murray, Service Director of Finance; Penny Fell, Director of Commercialisation and Citizens; Tim Borrett,  
Director of Policy & Strategy;  Simon Oliver, Director - Digital Transformation; Chris Holme, Interim 
Service Manager - Corporate Finance; Gemma Dando, Service Manager - Neighbourhood Management; 
Mark Wakefield, Head of Insight, Performance & Intelligence; Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor; Tony 
Whitlock, Principal Accountant.

Page 13

http://intranet.bcc.lan/ccm/cms-service/stream/asset/?asset_id=18805003
http://intranet.bcc.lan/ccm/cms-service/stream/asset/?asset_id=18805003


7. Public Forum
Public forum statements were received from following in relation to Item 9 – Global Parliament of 
Mayors Report:
 PFS 1. James Gore, Head of Government & Stakeholder Relations: Bristol Airport 
 PFS 2. Jonathan Bower, Womble Bond Dickinson (UK) LLP
 PFS 3. Dr Erik Lithander, Pro Vice-Chancellor & Vice-President, The University of Bristol
 PFS 4. James Durie, Chief Executive - Bristol Chamber & West of England Initiative

8. A New Commercialisation Strategy for Bristol City Council
The Director of Commercialisation took the Members through the published report and explained 
how progress had been made on the development, implementation and evaluation of the council’s 
New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme.  Some of the main discussion points were as 
follows: 
 A lot of work has been undertaken across the council via a commercialisation training programme 

to ensure staff have the necessary skills to deliver the strategy and also to feed into the actual 
ideas.

 It was explained that the recommendations at the end of the report are the ‘next steps’ in the 
process.  Members were asked if they agreed with the recommendations.

 A Member said that in his view the recent summit was very good and there was broad cross-party 
agreement.  He did however comment that it felt as if “we had been here before” but that 
everything was now in place and he was convinced things will actually move on this time.      

 A Member asked if the recommendation of ‘fully explore the potential to expand services at 
Exmouth Camp’ could be expanded upon.  Officers said that the Council leases it from the National 
Trust.  The lease terminates in 2020 but all possibilities of increasing the use in the meantime were 
being explored.

 It was asked if the training that had been discussed would be available to Members as well.  Yes it 
was said, it would be offered to Resources Scrutiny Commission Members as well as Cllr’s Negus 
and Gollop.      

 A Member stated that he appreciated that much of the move towards the Council being 
completely self-sufficient stemmed from central Government and asked if it was excessively 
challenging and high risk, using Bristol Energy as an example.  The response was that either way 
BCC is keen to be more efficient and business-like and it needs to start optimising the 
opportunities that are available to it.  

 It was questioned why there wasn’t any mention of the Bottle Yard Studios in the report. Officers 
agreed to look at why this hadn’t already been included in the information. 

The Chair commented that he thought this was a good report and thanked officers for their time. 

9. Global Parliament of Mayors (GPM) Report
The item was introduced to Members and they were shown a short video which had been produced 
from the event that took place on the 21st – 23rd October 2018 in Bristol.  The following key points 
were highlighted to Members: 
 Bristol hosted 67 mayors from 36 countries, along with representatives from 12 international 

networks. 
 The summit and fringe events directly included over 2,500 local citizens in various community 

engagement programme and activities.
 The event grew as it developed and feedback received has been very positive.
 A list of event outcomes are contained with the report 

Page 14



Members asked a number of questions and made the following comments:
 Members thought the amount of corporate sponsorship secured and the way it had been 

approached was impressive. 
 The number of Mayors who attended localised events was also thought to be very good and the 

collaborative and community approach that was adopted was commended.
 Some members expressed disappointment that elected members had not been able to 

participate.  
Members thanked officers for their time.   

10. Brexit Scenario Assessment
Director of Policy & Strategy introduced the report for the Members.  Some of the officers who had 
helped prepare the report were also in attendance to respond to questions.  

Bristol City Council is taking steps to ensure that it is prepared for Brexit. This report considers
the potential implications for the council of a ‘No Deal Brexit’ and some of the wider organisational 
consequences of the UK’s withdrawal from the EU. Threats and opportunities are considered against 
seven work-streams. 

It was explained that the report is not what officers think will happen but is a scenario assessment to 
help plan and scale back action and provide guidance for the Council, not the City as a whole.  There 
will also be a wider plan coming from the Bristol Brexit Group in due course. 

The following points were discussed: 
 Members asked about the risk rating of the pressures on the workforce and supply chain in the 

social care sector and the likelihood of it leading to disruption given that there is already an 11% 
vacancy rate.  Officers said that this had been assessed through the risk matrix but that it may 
need to be scored again as it was possible that the assessment had been slightly optimistic. 

 A Member asked about the levels of EU trade is coming in through our water ports and if this 
would be affected. Officers said they were due to meet with the Port Company fairly soon where 
issues such as potential business disruption will be discussed 

 It was asked if this assessment was really rather late and what the potential for any civil unrest 
was.  Officers said that it was a fair point and it is later than they would have liked be flagging up 
uncertainty.  But that considerable planning has been going on.  In fact whilst compiling this report 
it had been understood just how much was actually going on.  It was said that the Risk Register the 
Commission had taken in a previous meeting had suggested a medium level risk when it should 
probably have been scored higher.  

 It was asked whether or not any proper guidance had been received from central Government.  It 
was said that to date very little planning advice had been received.  

 Members were keen to understand as much as they could about the potential for civil unrest.  
Officers said that they were doing risk assessments on this which will be included in the next 
iteration of this report.

 A Member highlighted the potential for increased levels of homelessness as an issue that need to 
be taken into account.  Officers agreed and said they would take this point back. 

 It was suggested that the Council should be scenario planning on two levels 1) for the actual date 
and what will happen at that point for example customs at the ports if things go wrong and model 
resilience for this 2) and longer-term if for example the pounds value reduces further and workers 
decide to leave the UK. 

Page 15



 One Member said that he had been talking to local small businesses that aren’t in a position to 
plan the same level of contingencies and said they are very concerned about what might happen. 
It was asked if it was possible for the council to have some type of conversation with them 
because anything that can be said or done will be an improvement on the current situation.  
Officers agreed about it being necessary to plan scenarios for the short, medium and long term.  It 
was highlighted that the council has its annual business plans and the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) but it was fair to say that some things may have been missed.  Also, that the suggestion 
about engaging with local businesses would be taken away as an action for the plan. ACTION: 
Officers to feedback if and when communication is had with local SMEs about this. 

 The Chair asked that this be a standing item for future meetings even if it is only possible to 
provide a verbal up-date ACTION: Officers to provide a further update at the next meeting.  

The Members thanks the officers for the report content and their time. 

11. Council Tax Base Report
Officers introduced the report to Members and it was stated that estimates for 2019/20 suggest the 
number of new chargeable dwellings added to the valuation list will be exceeded by the number of 
student exemptions awarded resulting in reduced growth of 0.95% in the tax base. This equates to a 
loss in council tax revenue of £1.6m. This directly impacts on the resources available to fund the 
Council’s revenue budget due to be considered by Full Council on 19 February 2019.  It was stated 
that there is growth but that the figures are overtaken by the numbers of students.

The following points were raised by Members:
 It was said that some Bath University students now live as far away in Hartcliffe as the rents are 

cheaper.  It was suggested that local authorities that have high numbers of students should somehow 
be compensated for this.  Officers said that there isn’t currently a central lobby group on this issue.  
They have previously talked to other core cities on this subject and raise this again.  It was also stated 
that the economic ‘gross value added’ (GVA) from students was not simplistic and needed to be taken 
into consideration.  

 Members were concerned about this issue and were surprised that there wasn’t currently any 
lobbying taking place on this.  It was asked if the universities were aware of these figures.  It was said 
that the subject is frequently raised with them and had been again that week.  It had been strongly 
suggested that there is a need for more bespoke student accommodation in the city.  

 Officers confirmed that that legislation is now in place that means that empty properties are no longer 
exempt from paying council tax.  

 Members said that the council needed to understand exactly what the costs were i.e. the pros and 
cons of high numbers of students in the city.  

 Officers said that with ‘block grants’ and formulas the financial situation was very complex.  It was 
thought that Core Cities had begun to look into this issue and they would make further enquires.  
Members agreed and said that there was a need for reasonable estimates so that the Council knew 
what it’s argument was and where to start.  

 It was suggested that the council should look at all options including a tourist tax as BANES currently 
is.

 It was also suggested that investing in more property for key workers in the city would be beneficial in 
a number of ways including the collection of council tax.  There was a possibility that scrutiny could 
look into these issues further via task and finish group.  

Page 16



12. Collection Fund (Surplus/Deficit) Report
This report had been presented to Cabinet on the 4th December and was to recommend the 
estimated Collection Fund surplus / deficit as at 31st March 2019 for determination by Full Council. 

The report stated that an estimated surplus at 31 March 2019 on the Council Tax element of the 
Collection Fund of £2.1m be declared for 2018/19 and shared between this Council, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset and the Avon Fire and Rescue Service in proportion to 
their 2018/19 precepts on the Collection Fund.

The following points were discussed: 
 It was highlighted that if they are let for less than 150 days per year, Airbnb’s do not pay business 

rates.  Bristol currently has 490 Airbnb’s which is one of the largest figures outside of London.  
Members wanted to know if this situation was being monitored.  Yes it was said they are being 
monitored, they can all be identified via their websites.  It was however said that the council benefits 
from the council tax that is collected and they would likely be in receipt of business rate relief in any 
case.  

 A short discussion then followed on the use of bailiffs and whether they were the best approach to 
recovering debt.  Officers said that they were only used when necessary and that there had been a 
year on year decrease in their use.  A different approach was being piloted where officers are trying to 
contact people where possible, rather than using bailiffs.  It was said that as enforcement is reduced 
the costs to BCC are reduced and there are fewer court costs involved too.  

The Chair asked a member if he would like to ‘take a lead’ on this issue and provide an up-date in 
future, to which he agreed as long as it was okay with the Cabinet Member.  ACTION: An up-date 
about the use of bailiffs in debt recovery to be brought to a future meeting 

The Chair thanked officers for their time.  

13. Resources Performance Report Quarter 2
The report was introduced by the Head of Insight, Performance and Intelligence.  Officers had as 
previously requested, provided an overall summary at the beginning of the report.  Members were 
taken through the significant points in the report and the following performance indicators were 
discussed:  
 Legal Services agency spend as % of total salary bill: below target. As there weren’t any notes in 

the comments column the Chair said he would consider asking a Member of Legal Services to 
attend a future meeting.  

 Number of working days lost due to sickness absence (Resources): below target.
Members thanked officers for providing the summary report and their time.

14. Scrutiny Task and Finish Groups (verbal up-date)
Cllr Stevens up-dated members on the Scrutiny MTFP & Budget Task and Finish Group (T&F Group).  
To-date they had held five meetings.  The expected information on the Local Government Finance 
Settlement from Central Government hadn’t been received.  There would be an informal OSMB and 
T&F Group meeting on the 14th December to finalise the arrangements for the Resources Scrutiny 
Commission - budget scrutiny meetings in January.  The potential subjects for those meetings are 
Dedicated School Grants, Adult Social Care 18-64 years, Adult Social Care 64+.  A report from these 
meetings will go to OSMB on the 17th January for consideration and then be submitted as a ‘Report 

Page 17



from Scrutiny’ to Cabinet on 22nd January, 2019.   The T&F Group will likely meet once more in 
February so look at any budget pressures that might be in the P8 Finance Monitoring Report.  
Other Members agreed that this was a good plan. 

As Chair of the Social Value and Procurement Task and Finish Group, Cllr Clarke provided a brief verbal 
up-date on the group’s progress.  The Group were looking at a new more objective way of measuring 
social value in procurement as well as the current policy to ensure is still fit for purpose.  Any 
recommended changes will need to be approved at Cabinet in January.     

15. Resources Period 6 Finance Information
Due to time constraints the Commission did not discuss this report in any detail.

16. ICT Systems and Strategy (Exempt Item)
At this point during the meeting members of the public and press were asked to leave the room for 
this agenda item on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential and/or sensitive 
information.  

 Issues were raised about the casework management system - generic email account. Members said 
case numbers would help track things and chase people up.  It was suggested that this might be 
something that could be brought to a future Resources Scrutiny meeting. Officers agreed to highlight 
the issue, but this was outside of the FSA Programme to deliver. ACTION: Officers to raise the issue 
with colleagues.

 It was confirmed that the independent third-party board member was in the process of being 
recruited. Members requested they be invited to attend the next scrutiny meeting.  ACTION: Officers 
to find out if it will be possible.

 Members said they were keen to understand more about the risks of the programme and were 
informed that as part of the corporate risk register a complete assessment of the risks were being 
carried out. 

 Officers finished by saying that things were in a better position than they were but they were not 
quite where they would like to be. It was suggested that if it’s an exempt item the ICT item could be 
moved to the beginning of the meeting agenda instead in future.  

CHAIR  __________________

Page 18



1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting, and made a safety announcement in relation to the 
fire/emergency evacuation procedure.

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies were received from Cllrs Steve Pearce and Marg Hickman 

3. Declarations of Interest
Cllr Kent stated that his wife was part of a group that had submitted one of the public forum 
statements.   

4. Chair's Business 

The Chair expressed his concern about the lateness of the reports for the meeting.  Other Members 
then also expressed their frustration about this.  Cllr Brain said that the meeting was unconstitutional 
and it should therefore be postponed.  After further discussion the Members agreed to continue with 
the meeting but the Chair stated Members reserved the right to request a future meeting and ask 
further questions.  

5. Public Forum
Public Forum Statements were received as follows:

 PFS 1 - Bristol Independent SEND Community (present)

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Resources Scrutiny 
Commission

10th January 2019 at 4.00 pm

Members Present:  Cllr Stephen Clarke (Chair), Cllr Afzal Shah (Vice Chair), Cllr Don Alexander, Cllr Mark 
Brain, Cllr John Goulandris, Cllr Tim Kent, Cllr Sultan Khan, Cllr Graham Morris, Cllr Clive Stevens.

Also in attendance: Cllr Craig Cheney – Designated Deputy Mayor (with responsibility for Finance, 
Governance and Performance),  Cllr Holland, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Adult Social Care; 
Cllr Geoff Gollop, Cllr Mark Weston, Cllr Celia Phipps, 

Officers in Attendance: Mike Jackson, Executive Director of Resources and Head of Paid Services;  Denise 
Murray, Service Director of Finance; Michael Pilcher, Finance Business Partner;  David Tully, Interim 
Finance Business Partner; Alan Stubbersfield, Service Director, Education, Learning & Skills;  Jacqui 
Jenson, Executive Director Adults, Children and Education; Terry Dafter, Service Director - Care and 
Support – Adults; Jon Toy,  Senior Consultation & Engagement Officer; Neil Sinclair,  Interim Finance 
Business Partner; Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor.

Page 19



 PFS 2 - Julie Boston (not present)

6. Budget Consultation - Report of Findings
The Senior Consultation & Engagement Officer introduced the item to Members and took them 
through a set of presentation slides which explained what the process had been this year and what 
results and information had been gathered from those whom had participated in the consultation. 

Scrutiny Commission Comments
Members were encouraged by the following;
 The broad array of communities that officers sought to engage with and the steps taken to 

achieve this. Members were particularly impressed by the fact that officers had proactively gone 
to shopping centres, cafes and libraries and other public areas with their IPads to obtain opinions 
from a much wider cohort than is usual in such consultations. This approach led to a considerable 
increase in response rates (especially from those who are often ‘hard to reach’ groups).

 The valuable insights and high quality data gained by the consultation process.

The Commission commended officers on the high standard and achievements of this piece of work.

7. Adults, Children and Education (ACE) Directorate Savings
The Director of Finance presented the published information on the up to date schedule of savings to 
the Commission.  Members made the following comments: 

 Members noted the high costs currently required to care for people with learning difficulties e.g. 
over £200,000 per person each year.

 Members were encouraged to see that the costs of Adult Social Care (ASC) for those 64 years and 
over were now considerably lower than they were. Officers predicted that the budget for ASC for 
64+ was to be reduced from £71 million to £59 million over three years.  The Commission 
Members were encouraged by this although a number of them were sceptical that these figures 
could actually be achieved.

 It was acknowledged that some of the issues in this spending category were influenced (both on 
the income and expenditure side) by matters outside the control of this council.    

 Members considered that they did not have enough detail with regards to what sits below the 
headline budget figures i.e. how do the savings break down and how are savings going to be 
achieved? It was recognised by Members that it was difficult to scrutinise information when only 
the headlines figures are provided because of the timing and circumstances. 

 Members were pleased that an apparently balanced budget had been achieved.  They did 
however express concern about likely future pressures on this budget item.   

Adult Social Care:  Officer Presentation and Comments by Commission Members
The Service Director - Care and Support – Adults presented the published information to Members.  

The following key points were explained and comments were made:
 The costs for Adult Social Care (ASC) for over 64 year olds have been reduced by over a million 

pounds.
 ASC for 18-64 year olds – Bristol has an average number of individuals but some of the individual 

costs are high, especially for people with learning difficulties.  Of which there are currently 2,000 
people of working age.  There are some instances where costs are as high as £200,000 per year.  
The costs of care packages are something that officers are looking to reduce going forward.

Page 20



 Officers said the delayed transfer of care situation was much better than it was the previous year.
 Members were encouraged to hear that no additional savings were being proposed and that it 

appeared that things are moving in the right direction.
 It was the Commissions understanding that holistic actions have brought the costs down for the 

ASC for 64+ provision.

Dedicated School Grants (DSG): Scrutiny Commission Comments 
The Service Director, Education, Learning and Skills presented the published information to Members.  
Some of the points that were discussed were as follows: 
 Members were of the strong opinion that despite the provision of additional funding financial 

resources in this area were still inadequate.   
 Members understand that the numbers of children and the complexity of their needs have 

increased and that this is increasing costs and generating a cumulative pressure on the High Needs 
Budget. They did applaud the fact that officers specifically confirmed that the Council budgetary 
process did now seem to be based on the anticipated needs of children and not the anticipated 
spend.

 £58.2 million is the likely spend, resulting in a £3.3 million forecast deficit; Members appreciated 
that this figure had reduced.  Questions were asked about borrowing from the future and 
comments were made about the risk involved.  

 Members would require further clarification but currently understood that the £2 million 
transferred across to the High Needs Block was from the Growth Fund (money for expansions of 
existing and new schools) and heard officer’s reassurances that this is being monitored and does not 
affect schools’ abilities to deliver mainstream education.  

 The Commission Member stated that schools still appear to be underfunded and that there should 
be more clarity that the responsibility to fund them properly actually lies with central 
Government. The costs of education (both mainstream and SEN) should not need to be funded 
and subsidised by other areas of the Council.

 It was agreed that the Transformation Programme would be scrutinised by the Adults Children and 
Education (ACE) Scrutiny Commission.  

The Commission thanked officers for their time. 

8. Period 7 Budget Monitoring Report - Information Item

9. Report from Chair of the MTFP and Budget Task and Finish Group Introductory Presentation 
Councillor Stevens provided a short overview presentation of the work of the Budget T&F Group.  
This explained the key areas that the group had looked at plus what Councillor Stevens considered 
the main risks to be.   

The presentation slides have been up-loaded with the meeting papers.

Please note, this item was taken at the start of the meeting after Public Forum

10. Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) Update - Information Item 
This report was first published for the 4th December 2018 Cabinet meeting.

CHAIR  __________________

Page 21



1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting, and made a safety announcement in relation to the 
fire/emergency evacuation procedure.

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies were received from Cllr Steve Pearce.

3. Declarations of Interest
None

4. Chair's Business 
The Commission raised concerns about the delay in receiving all the papers for the meeting. The 
Executive Director of Resources clarified that there had been some confusion about when the 
information would be available and apologised for the issue.  

5. Public Forum
None

6. Local Government Finance Settlement - Officer Update
Officers explained to the Commission that the settlement for Bristol was largely in line with their 
assumptions with the exception of the following:
 Redistribution of the surplus in the National Business Rates levy account resulted in £1.5m of 

additional funding not previously anticipated within the MTFP. 
 A review of the conditions attributed to further one-off funding has resulted in overall additional 

funding in the region of  £2.7 million net (including £1.5m above) plus the possibility of the extra 

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Resources Scrutiny 
Commission

14th January 2019 at 4.00 pm

Members Present:  Cllr Stephen Clarke (Chair), Cllr Afzal Shah (Vice Chair), Cllr Don Alexander, Cllr Mark 
Brain, Cllr John Goulandris, Cllr Tim Kent, Cllr Sultan Khan, Cllr Graham Morris, Cllr Clive Stevens, Cllr 
Steve Pearce, Cllr Margaret Hickman.

Also in attendance: Cllr Craig Cheney – Designated Deputy Mayor (with responsibility for Finance, 
Governance and Performance); Cllr Geoff Gollop, Cllr Mark Weston, Cllr Celia Phipps, 

Officers in Attendance: Mike Jackson, Executive Director of Resources and Head of Paid Services;  Denise 
Murray, Service Director of Finance; Michael Pilcher, Finance Business Partner;  Johanna Holmes, 
Scrutiny Advisor; Lucy Fleming, Head of Democratic Engagement. 

Page 22



1% in Council Tax (approx £2 million, now confirmed). 
 Post the settlement, government announced an additional High Needs DSG of +£1.0m in 2018/19 

and another £1.0m in 2019/20. However this is still estimated to leave a cumulative deficit of by 
March 2020.

7. Capital Programme

The discussion was as follows;

 It was noted that Members of the T&F Group had previously looked at the Capital Strategy (not 
Capital Programme) and so were disappointed that the figures they had been provided with didn’t 
breakdown the percentages into categories.  This meant it was difficult to fully understand what 
the information was actually conveying i.e. what has changed, been add or removed?  Members 
indicated that they may want to look at this again in more detail in due course.

 A number of Members questioned the decision to include in the budget potential Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which had not yet been received or even individually identified in the 
figures.  

8. Bristol City Council Funding Reserves

Members received a presentation from officers setting out the situation regarding funding reserves, 
noting that the Task and Finish Group had not previously had time to look at the subject.  The Commission 
was assured that in terms of the comparison of reserve levels with similar local authorities, Bristol City 
Council was ‘in the middle of the pack’.

9. Financial Assessment Following the Arena Cabinet Decision

The Commission asked for clarification regarding the revenue impact/savings of not proceeding with the 
Arena at Arena Island.   The following matters were discussed;

 Officers confirmed that £2.5 million per year is being saved.
 Members were keen to understand more about the differing land values for the site depending on 

the eventual use but were told it would be valued at the time depending on the scheme.  
Members were surprised that such calculations had not already been carried out by officers 
utilising the various different possibilities for the land use. 

 Members asked to receive further information in due course about the alternative business cases 
that will be submitted to the LEP Board for the now unused £53 million (ie the funding set aside to 
complete the scheme).  

10. General Budget Comments from Members (No papers)

The following comments were made;

 Concern was expressed that lots of incoming funding was ‘one-off’ (which totalled approximately 
£7m).  These payments may appear to give a more optimistic view of the situation than the reality.  

 Regarding organisational restructure and the importance of comparing data between financial 
years, officers were asked to ensure there is a way to retain historic information so that 
comparisons can be made in the future between budget lines, even after organisational 

Page 23



responsibility (and therefore financial budgeting) have been redistributed between departments.  
Officers confirmed that this could normally be achieved albeit using manual processes. 

 The Commission noted the P7 Budget Monitoring report and concerns were raised about the 
figure of 24,000 outstanding invoices.  Officers confirmed that the situation was mainly related to 
Adult Social Care services but in any event the number was reducing.

11. Report from the Chair of the Scrutiny MTFP & Budget Task & Finish Group - Information Item

Noted.  

12. Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) Update - Information Item

Noted. 

13. Period 7 Budget Monitoring Report - Information Item

Noted. 

CHAIR  __________________

Page 24



 

Resources Scrutiny Commission Action Sheet 2018/2019

Agenda 
Item 

Title of Report/ 
Description

Action and Deadline Responsible 
Officer / Member

Action taken and date 
completed

24th September 2018
8. ICT Systems and Strategy ACTION: Officers to confirm who the 

independent third-party board member is once 
they have been appointed and if they can come 
to the next Commission meeting.  

Director - Digital 
Transformation

Officers to let Members know 
who this is when they have 
been confirmed.

Please see agenda item 16 
from 6th December actions 
below.

10. Resources Directorate Quarterly 
Performance Report (Quarter 1 
- 2018/19)

ACTION: Cllr Clarke and Cllr Stephens said they 
would approach the HR Committee about the 
possibility of providing an update report on 
‘workforce’ to scrutiny at the end of the year.

Councillors Clarke and 
Stevens

Workforce / Performance 
Management is now an 
agenda item on the 28th 
February 2019 meeting 

12. 2018/19 Period 3 Forecast 
Outturn Report – Resources 
Extract

ACTION: the role of the scrutiny commission to 
be defined with regards to scrutinising 
Corporate Finances or the Resources 
Directorate finances only. 

Scrutiny Advisor / Cllr 
Clarke 

Members are to discuss this 
point as part of the scrutiny 
work programme setting 
process in May / June  

6th December 2018
10. Brexit Scenario Assessment ACTION: Officers to feedback if and when 

communication is made with local SMEs about 
contingency plans for a ‘no deal Brexit’. 

Director of Policy & 
Strategy and Scrutiny 
Advisor

Officers will provide an up-
date on this when they next 
attend OSMB on 11th March.  

Bristol City Council
Resources Scrutiny Commission
Action Sheet 
28th February 2019

P
age 25



The Chair asked that this be a standing item for 
future meetings even if it is only possible to 
provide a verbal up-date ACTION: Officers to 
provide a further update at the next meeting. 

After some consideration and 
discussion the Chair of the 
Commission, the Chair of 
OSMB and the Director of 
Director of Policy & Strategy 
have agreed that due to the 
potential cross-cutting impacts 
of a no deal Brexit, OSMB is the 
more appropriate forum for 
regular updates to be provided at 
going forward.

12. Collection Fund (Surplus/Deficit) 
Report

ACTION: An up-date about the use of bailiffs in 
debt recovery to be brought to a future meeting 

Cllr Brain and Officer This has been be added to the 
list of potential RSC work 
programme items for 2019 /20
 

16 ICT Systems and Strategy 
(Exempt Item)

Problems were raised about the casework 
management system - generic email account. 
Officers agreed to highlight the issue, but this 
was outside of the FSA Programme to deliver. 
ACTION: Officers to raise the issue with 
colleagues.

ACTION (as above from Sept): Officers to find 
out if it will be possible for the independent 
third-party board member to attend the next 
Scrutiny Commission meeting in February.

Director - Digital 
Transformation

Officers will provide Members 
with a verbal up-date on this 
at the February 2019 meeting.

A report from an independent 
third party will be presented to 
the Commission at the 
February meeting.  Please note 
the Director of Digital 
Transformation will present 
this report in the unavoidable 
absence of the independent 
representative.  

P
age 26



Scrutiny Work Programme 2018 / 2019    

Adults, Children and 
Education Scrutiny 

Commission 

Communities Scrutiny 
Commission 

Growth and 
Regeneration Scrutiny 

Commission 

Resources Scrutiny 
Commission 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board 

July 2018 
  26th July, 6pm   

  Annual Business Report   

  Joint Local Transport Plan   

  Bristol Transport Strategy   

  Cllr Threlfall Q&A / discussion 
session 

  

  Trusts and Mutualisation 
Report 

  

  Air Quality   

August 2018 
  13th August, 9.30 am   

  Housing Company (closed 
briefing and Q&A session for 
Commission Members and 
OSMB) 

  

September 2018 
 10th September, 10am  24th September, 3pm 3rd September 

 Waste: 

 Bristol Waste Company 

 Cleanliness of city / clean 
streets campaign – 
update 

 Enforcement  

 

ICT Systems and Strategy Arena Cabinet Paper 

 Community Safety statistics 
(Safer Bristol) 

 
Commercialisation and 
Income Generation   

Companies Governance 
Review – information only 

 
Directorate Performance 
Report (KPIs) 

 
Annual Business Report Creation of the Housing 

Company  – information only  

   
Finance Report  Bristol Energy Operational 

Plan  

   
Directorate Performance 
Report (KPI’s) 

 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Adults, Children and 
Education Scrutiny 

Commission 

Communities Scrutiny 
Commission 

Growth and 
Regeneration Scrutiny 

Commission 

Resources Scrutiny 
Commission 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board 

   Risk Register (Corporate)  

October  2018 

Thurs, 18th October, 5pm    
25th October 4pm MQT  & 
5pm OSMB  

Strengthening Families 
Programme and Adverse 
Childhood Experiences 

   Equalities Policy & Strategy  

Children’s Centres 
   

Corporate Performance 
Report  
 

Suicide (University) Clusters    Corporate Risk Register 

Directorate Performance 
Report (KPIs) 

   
Standing item – Chair’s 
Updates 

Directorate Risk Register     

November 2018 
19th November, 2pm  12th November 10.00 am 29th November, 5pm  Tues 27th November  

(4pm MQT / 5pm OSMB) 

Better Lives Programme 

 Implementation 

 Delayed Transfers of Care 

 Recommendations from 
the Adult Social Care 
Scrutiny Task Group 

Housing:  

 Private rented sector / 
HMO regulation  

 Tackling housing crisis 

 Vehicle Dwellers 

Highways Scheme Delivery 
Report 

 Libraries – Positioning Paper 

Female Genital Mutilation 
(FGM)  

Community Safety Statistics 
(Safer Bristol)  

Harbour Review   Local High Streets – 
Positioning Paper 

Public Health  
 

Risk Register City Leap Project  Standing item – Chair’s 
Updates 

Directorate Performance 
Report (KPI’s) 

 Directorate Performance 
Report (KPI’s) 

 Information only item - 
Household Waste Recycling 
Centre planned at Hartcliffe 
Way 

Directorate Risk Register 
(TBC) 

 Risk Register  Bristol Waste Company 
Business Plan (part exempt) 

    Bristol Energy Company 

P
age 28



Adults, Children and 
Education Scrutiny 

Commission 

Communities Scrutiny 
Commission 

Growth and 
Regeneration Scrutiny 

Commission 

Resources Scrutiny 
Commission 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board 

Trading Position (exempt) 

     

December 2018 
   4pm, 6th December 2018   

   Commercialisation & Income 
Generation  - Update 

 Plus: Commercialisation & 
Innovation Working 
Group – Up-date 

 

   ICT Systems and Strategy  
(exempt item) 

 

   Council Tax Base Report  

 
 

 Collection Fund 
Surplus/Deficit Report 

 

 
 

 Brexit Impact Assessment 
Report 

 

   Global Parliament of Mayors   

 
 

 Resources Period 6 Finance 
Information – Standing Item 

 

   Q2 Performance Report   

January 2019 
28th January, 2pm 14th January, 10 am  January (Budget Scrutiny) Thurs 17th January   

(4pm MQT / 5pm OSMB) 

Adult Social Care Budget & 
Supplementary Extra 

CIL (update/review of new CIL 
committee arrangements) 

  4pm, 10th January 

 4pm, 14th January  

Brexit Scenario Planning 

Mental Health 
Recommissioning and 
Supporting People Services 

Customer services 
update/review 

 
 

One City Plan 

Winter resilience update Public Toilets   

 

Budget Scrutiny – Finalisation 
of Comments to Cabinet 
(potentially to include Cabinet 
budget papers for 
information) 

Suicide Prevention and Standing Items TBC:   Standing item – Chair’s 

P
age 29



Adults, Children and 
Education Scrutiny 

Commission 

Communities Scrutiny 
Commission 

Growth and 
Regeneration Scrutiny 

Commission 

Resources Scrutiny 
Commission 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board 

Response Update  Community Safety 
statistics (Safer Bristol)  

 Directorate Performance 
Report (KPIs)  

 Directorate Risk Register 

Updates 

Thrive mental health – annual 
review 

Housing Allocations / Home 
Choice Review  

 Mayors Forward Plan 

Directorate Performance 
Report (KPI’s) 

 
 

 Scrutiny Work Programme 

Ofsted Improvement Plant 
(For information only) 

 
 

  

BNSSG CCG Community 
Services Procurement Update 

 
 

  

February 2019  

  21st February, 5pm Scrutiny Member Briefing 
20th (Finance Monitoring) 
28th February, 4pm 

 

  Flood Strategy Performance Management 
 

 

   Clean Air Plan Commercialisation & Income 
Generation up-date 
Plus: Commercialisation & 
Innovation Working Group – 
Up-date 

 

   Bristol Housing Festival and 
Modern Methods of 
Construction 

Future State Assessment (ICT 
Item)  

 

  City Leap (exempt item)  Performance Report  
Legal Services 

 

  Performance Report Q3 Risk Register (Corporate)  

March 2019 

25th (tbc) March, 4pm    Mon 11th March 5pm 

School Places – Provision, 
Expansion and Admissions 

   BCC Business Plans  

P
age 30



 

Bristol Hospital Education 
Services 

   Performance Framework 

School readiness risks and 
action plans  

   Brexit Up-date Report 

Learning City update     

Care Leavers     

SEND Scrutiny task group 
update report 

    

Directorate Performance 
Report (KPI’s) 

    

Risk Register      

April 2019 

    1st April 

    City Leap  

    Business Plan – Bristol Energy 

 
   

Business Plan – Bristol 
Holding  

Items to be Scheduled     Bristol City Council’s Business 
Plans 19/20 
 

Quality Accounts  - May 2019 
(Joint with S Glos?) 

 
Cross-Border Planning Issues 
(provisional – TBC) 

 Provisional Item  - Corporate 
Risk Register 

 
 

Local Plan (TBC, possible 
Planning led meeting in next 
municipal year) 

 
Provisional Item  - Corporate 
Performance Report 

 
 

Bristol Transport Strategy 
(TBC) 

 
Standing item – Chair’s 
Updates 

 
 

Cumberland Basin / Western 
Harbour – now to be re-
scheduled for 19/20 

 
 

  Bristol Harbour Review    

P
age 31



Developing a strong performance culture

John Walsh

28th February 2019

Resources Scrutiny 

Commission

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 8



The current system used for recording results of performance 

reviews (My Performance) has been in place since 2015 and will be 

replaced by iTrent in April 2019 as part of the roll-out of a new 

single HR and Payroll system.

- Current system is costly and inefficient

- A decline in completion rates over the last two years, due to:

� Complex sign-off functionality 

� Incomplete and inconsistent use

� System not integrated with Payroll & HR

To address this, one of the main priorities in the Organisational 

Improvement Plan is to design and implement a new performance 
management strategy to increase the levels of participation and 
quality of performance reviews.

Drivers for change

Current 

System

Why 

Change?

Strong

Performance 

Culture

P
age 33



Our performance management goals

• Senior colleagues take visible ownership, and lead the way 

• All managers have access to the support they need to have high-quality performance 

conversations, e.g.: Source content, face to face training

• All managers have 100% completion of their reports’ annual reviews as an individual 

objective

• Every colleague completes their annual review

• Colleagues report that they are having regular, high-quality performance conversations 

through the annual staff survey

P
age 34



Performance management - it’s good to talk

What it looks like when it’s working well

• Ongoing conversations throughout the year

• Gives everyone clear direction for their work

• An opportunity to recognise good work, or raise 

any issues early

• Regularly check-in on people’s understanding of 

how they are contributing

• Allow us to think about our Values and 

Behaviours

• When our 1 to 1s become a habit, six-monthly 

and annual reviews are simpler and easier

P
age 35



Implementation and timeline

Awareness 

raising

• Senior leadership team briefed and leading from the front

• Online training and guidance updated

• Early demos of new system

• Consistent messages cascaded through organisation

Support & 

training

• Drop-ins and system training sessions

• Guidance and support on effective performance conversations

• Briefing for offline staff

• Regular communications to clarify expectations and offer support

System go 

live

• Performance reviews booked with all staff (already booked with Directors)

• Agree objectives for 19/20

• Regular reporting of progress; logging in and starting reviews

• Continued communication, drop-ins and training

Jan

Apr

P
age 36



Ours measures of success

� All managers and staff are able to record their performance objectives and progress using 

iTrent – From April 2019

� All staff & managers have access to advice and guidance they need; All managers have the 

opportunity to develop their people skills around quality conversations. Leading to effective 

performance and talent management – In place by Feb 2019

� All staff have a completed annual performance review for 19/20, with real-time 

management information used to track progress and take action in areas of low compliance

� Staff report that they are satisfied with the quality of their performance review – as 

measured by the staff survey

� Completion of workforce development plans for each team, helping to allocate  L&D budget 

for most impactful activities  

P
age 37



Corporate Leadership Board are leading implementation

User groups from across the organisation have been at the centre of the design of the system 
and process

Comprehensive communication and training plan

New system is an integral part of day to day management

Real time management information to report on compliance levels

Employee engagement surveys will measure quality of reviews

Key performance requirement for managers to complete reviews

Workforce development plans equip colleagues with skills they need and to develop their 
career

Reduction in case work  

Why we are confident it will work
S

tro
n

g
 P

e
rfo

rm
a

n
ce

 

C
u

ltu
re

P
age 38



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

1

Resources Scrutiny 
Commission 

21st February 2019

Report of: Director: Commercialisation and Citizens

Title: New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme 2018/21

Ward: All

Officer Presenting Report:  Penelope Fell

Recommendation

That the Resources and Scrutiny Commission note:
1. The update on progress on the New Commercialisation Strategy and Programme 

2018/21 as requested by Resources Scrutiny Commission on 6 December 2018.

The significant issues in the report are:

The report addresses five significant issues:
1. Refers briefly to the Director: Commercialisation and Citizens 11 January 2019 Report 

that was previously endorsed at the 7 November 2018 Commercialisation Summit and 
subsequent meetings of the Resources Scrutiny Commission (RSC) held on 6 December 
2018, and the Commercialisation and Innovation Working Group (CIWG) held on 5 
December 2018, and 16 January and 13 February 2019.

2. Notes progress made on micro, medium and major commercialisation projects 
endorsed at the above meetings;

3. Makes further reference to the Director: Commercialisation and Citizens draft 
proposals to restructure the staffing establishment of her Directorate; and,

4. Concludes with an improved understanding of some of next steps to be taken on a 
number of projects that could become part of the council’s New Commercialisation 
Strategy and Programme 2018/21.

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

2

1. Summary

This Report sets out progress on the implementation of the council’s New Commercialisation 

Strategy and Programme 2018/21 since the Director: Commercialisation and Citizens (C+C) 

11 January 2019 Report.

2. Background

The Resources EDM will recall endorsing the Report of the Director: (C+C) of 11 January 

2019 that was also previously endorsed by the Commercialisation and Innovation Working 

Group (CIWG) and Resources Scrutiny Committee (RSC) as referred to above.

As a result, the meeting will also recall that the Director: C+C undertook to report regularly to 

subsequent Resources EDM meetings on progress made in implementing the micro, medium 

and major commercialisation projects proposed at the council’s Leadership Forum on 24 

October 2018, and endorsed at the Commercialisation Summit on 7 November 2018.

3. Commercialisation Project Prioritisation Template

As Resources EDM is aware the Director:  C+C has commissioned David Robson, Director of 

Archemys Consultants to provide dedicated commercialisation training and support to bridge 

the shortfall in staffing resources prior to the appointment of dedicated Commercialisation 

resources referred to Section 6 of this Report below.

This dedicated training provided by Archemys includes a Commercialisation Bootcamp that 

was held on 18 December 2018, to be followed by subsequent training, including a Bootcamp 

review on 28 February 2019, and a series of incubator sessions to develop individual projects.  

In addition, CIWG are reviewing the possibility of taking a ‘dragons den’ approach to select 

future project proposals for progression from colleagues across BCC.

This work has built on the recommendations of the Commercialisation Summit and the 

subsequent CIWG and RSC endorsements as set below.

Page 40



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

3

A Commercialisation Project Prioritisation Template has been developed to both apply 

SMART criteria and prioritise Directorates’ Commercialisation projects for implementation as 

part of the New Commercialisation Programme 2019/22.

Accordingly the following seven steps will be applied to roll out Commercialisation projects as 

well as to secure early wins from the limited dedicated resources currently available to secure 

efficiency savings and income growth. They determine whether the Project is likely to:

 achieve agreed service delivery standards;

 have a low implementation cost profile;

 engineer, enhance and extend Council services rather than start-up new ones;

 deliver early results, is cash-positive, and has measurable return on investment (RoI);

 demonstrates a business model capable of being scaled up;

 secure continuing revenue; and,

 directly or indirectly contribute to the Council's community goals.

4. Progress

The above work has resulted in Directorates’ Commercialisation projects being considered by 

the CIWG for implementation as part of the New Commercialisation Programme 2019/22, as 

follows:

Micro Projects

 Pest Control. This project is in hand and is coming to the briefing for the Cabinet 

member for Commercialisation.  However, clarity needs to be provided about income 

growth and revenue continuity. Scope may exist for this proposal as a Medium Term 

Project, to provide added value via subscription packages comprising regulatory 

compliance surety, quality standards, translation, communications and media and sales 

and marketing support.

 Gritting Private Roads:
Doubt exists as to whether this represents a scalable source of income, as it is 

seasonal rather than providing a year-round source of revenue income growth.

 Blaise Nursery:
This service is run by the BCC Parks team, who are exploring potential low level 

income generation opportunities, including improved mobile catering provision.

Page 41



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

4

 Fleet Services:

This project is already open to the public as an MOT centre.  Clarity is required on 

income growth and revenue continuity, although scope may exist here for this proposal 

as a Medium Term Project for MOTs and repairs.  However, spare capacity currently 

available needs to be clarified, as well as the revenue continuity that could be created 

by carrying out long wheel base vehicle MOTs.

Medium Term Projects

 Know Your Place ‘App’ 
This project has multiple applications, such as health and education, and further 

meetings are taking place to identify scope and potential markets.

 Translating and Interpreting Services
This service already operates on a self-funding basis, is of high quality and delivers 

effective support.   

 Conference and event spaces
Work is in hand with the Culture team in the Economy of Place Directorate to explore 

how the market can be expanded to achieve an increased take up of BCC conference 

and event spaces, leading to improved income generation.  This will include 

benchmarking of the current offer against competitors in the sector across the City, and 

analysing the current pricing model, as well as the facilities on offer.

 Telehealth/telecare
The opportunity to collaborate in a joint venture in telecare is being explored with the 

Director of Housing and Landlord Services.

Major Projects

 Markets
Work is in hand to improve both the overall Market environment and the facilities 

available (for example, providing WiFi, and improved customer seating), as well as 

continuing to expand the retail offerings and the range of food outlets. The Cabinet 

Member for Commercialisation is receiving regular briefings.

 Exmouth Camp
Work is in hand to review the legal position, including reviewing the terms of the current 

Lease from the National Trust, and the requirements of the local planning authority.  

The Director: C+C will initially brief the Cabinet Member for Commercialisation on the 

Page 42



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

5

legal position, and then report to both the Executive Director: Resources and Deputy 

Mayor Cllr Craig Cheney.

 Harbour
Work has commenced to develop relationships with key stakeholders and a proposed 

timeline and process to support the Harbour Review is being developed.

Projects Where More Information is Required
A number of other projects are being examined such as shared services, and the promotion of 

Council services, fire doors and the joinery shop, and a social value brand promotion tool 

where more information is required.

In some areas there is a great deal of confusion plus overly high expectations from digital 

services such as digital advertising.  Some caution is being exercised in taking these projects 

forward because of the relatively high investment needed to match the offer of established 

competitors in these economic sectors.

5. Directorate Restructure & Dedicated Commercialisation Resources

The considerations referred to above will be concluded in a more effective and timely way 

once the Director: C+C’s draft proposals are taken forward to restructure the staffing 

establishment of her Directorate, and release funding for the appointment of dedicated 

Commercialisation resources including Commercialisation Development, Market, and Bidding 

and Funding Analysts, and Information Officer posts.

6. Conclusion

More generally, it has become clear that revenue accrued from commercialising council 

services from efficiency savings and income growth will be increased if services begin to 

emphasise subscription packages rather than one-time purchases, particularly with the 

prospect of delivering shared services for and across other public sector organisations.  This 

business model not only provides revenue continuity income but it also enables commodity 

products (such as MOTs for example) to be delivered at perceived 'near-zero' pricing.  Key to 

this latter point will be:

 as detailed in earlier Reports, a clear understanding of the cost of delivering 

commercialised services;
Page 43



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

6

 understanding where we have an existing market, and listening to what those 

customers are telling us;

 selling on effectively to those customers;

 effective sales and marketing to potential customers;

 thereby ensuring both continuing competitiveness as well as market responsiveness.

Page 44



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

7

7.   Consultation
a) Internal

Elected members including CIWG members, BCC Head of Paid Service, BCC s151 

Officer, and Resources EDM.

b) External
Not applicable

8.  Public Sector Equality Duties

8a) Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-

maker considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected 

characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, 

religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have 

due regard to the need to:

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited 

under the Equality Act 2010.

ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in 

particular, to the need to --

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic;

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in 

relation to disabled people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of 

disabled persons' disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public 

life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 

disproportionately low.

Page 45



Resources Scrutiny Commission – Report

8

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in 

particular, to the need to –

- tackle prejudice; and

- promote understanding.

8b) 

Appendices:
None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None 

Page 46



1
Version April-2018

Decision Pathway – Report Template

PURPOSE: For reference

MEETING: Resources Scrutiny Commission

DATE: 28 February 2019
.

TITLE Quarterly Performance Progress Report (Quarter 3 2018/19)

Ward(s) All wards

Author: Mark Wakefield Job title: Head of Insight, Performance & Intelligence

Cabinet lead:  Cllr Cheney Executive Director lead: Mike Jackson

Proposal origin: BCC Staff

Decision maker: Officer
Decision forum: Officer Meeting

Timescales: Performance is reported as part of quarterly governance process as soon as possible after gathering all 
the necessary data. This report designed to enable Officers, Cabinet Members and Scrutiny to focus their 
performance conversations on the same indicators and information.

Purpose of Report: 
1) To brief Scrutiny on the progress made against their Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Q3 2018/19 (Appendix 

A)

Evidence Base:
This report and appendix is designed to standardise a set of KPIs and reporting arrangements around the corporate 
strategy and BCCs business plan.

In terms of performance in Q3 for the directorate, of note is the following:

Performance summary:  
Taking the total available KPI results this quarter: 

 46% of those with established targets are performing on or above target and,
 Just over half (51%) of those with a direct comparison from 12 months ago have improved.

       So a fairly neutral picture when looking at the Directorate as a whole.

Service Areas:
Commercialisation & Citizens
 FOI – we have never met the target but a new case management system is anticipated to help.
 We are achieving good progress in regards to our channel shift ambitions.

Digital Transformation:  
 IT critical security issues, still not resolved – due to complex dependencies.
 The average time taken to resolve both Priority 1 and Priority 2 incidents in the year to date is well above target 

and an improvement on the same period the previous year.
 Online transactions continue to increase.

Finance: 
 Council Tax and Business Rate collections are both now ahead of target. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 12



2
Version April-2018

 The percentage of invoices paid on time continues to be behind target, although is performing slightly better 
than last year.

 Rolling year debt is below target but some large outstanding invoices are causing this pressure.

Workforce & Change:  
 Significant interest across the council and in committees looking at sickness rates.
 ‘My Performance’ compliance for BCC as a whole has not changed this quarter, but preparations are underway to 

implement the new HR IT system which will refresh expectations and targets.

Legal and Democratic Services:   
 Registering deaths has improved and we compare well, just not meeting our challenging target.
 Agency spend, for Resources in general and  Legal in particular, is higher than target and worsening.
 We are improving and meeting targets for income generation.
 Fuller report to be presented by the service itself.

Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations: That the performance report be noted, and measures to address 
performance issues are considered and implemented by relevant services. 

Corporate Strategy alignment: All BCP PIs contained within Appendix A1 are designed to demonstrate our progress 
towards the Corporate Strategy (2018/23).

City Benefits: Understanding whether BCC is delivering outcomes for the citizens and city ensures organisational 
effort can be focussed on benefit realisation.  

Consultation Details: Performance progress has been presented to relevant DMTs, EDMs and Cabinet Leads prior to 
the production of this report.

Revenue Cost £0 Source of Revenue Funding Insert specific service budget

Capital Cost £0 Source of Capital Funding e.g. grant/ prudential borrowing etc.

One off cost ☐          Ongoing cost ☐ Saving Proposal ☐           Income generation proposal ☐

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:

1. Finance Advice:  n/a

Finance Business Partner: n/a

2. Legal Advice: n/a

Legal Team Leader: n/a

3. Implications on IT: n/a

IT Team Leader: n/a

4. HR Advice: n/a

HR Partner: n/a
EDM Sign-off Resources EDM
Cabinet Member sign-off [name] [date]
CLB Sign-off [name] [date]
For Key Decisions - Mayor’s 
Office sign-off

[name] [date]

Appendix A – Further essential background / detail on the proposal
Appendix A: Performance Progress Update (Q3 2018/19) 

YES

Appendix B – Details of consultation carried out - internal and external NO

Page 48



3
Version April-2018

Appendix C – Summary of any engagement with scrutiny NO

Appendix D – Risk assessment NO

Appendix E – Equalities screening / impact assessment of proposal  NO

Appendix F – Eco-impact screening/ impact assessment of proposal   NO

Appendix G – Financial Advice NO

Appendix H – Legal Advice NO

Appendix I – Combined Background papers NO

Appendix J – Exempt Information NO

Appendix K – HR advice NO

Appendix L – ICT NO

Page 49



                   

RESOURCES – Q3 2018/19 Performance Summary 

 
FINANCE 

Title Target status 
.BCP501a:  Projected forecast outturn as a percentage of approved 
budget (BCC) on target 

.BCP501b: Forecast level of reserves (BCC) above target 

.BCP502:  Increase the percentage of invoices paid on time (BCC) well below 
target 

.BCP503:  Increase the percentage of Council Tax collected above target 

.BCP504:  Increase the percentage of non-domestic rates collected above target  
DRE357b:  Level (%) of rolling year debt collected (BCC) below target 

DRE619:  Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit claims well above 
target 

DRE620:  Average time taken to process changes to existing Housing 
Benefit claims below target 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WORKFORCE & CHANGE 
Title Target status 
.BCP522:  Reduce the average number of working days lost to sickness 
(BCC) 

well below 
target 

.BCP523:  Maintain staff turnover on target 

.BCP524:  Increase % employees starting their 'My Performance' 18/19 
review form (BCC) 

well below 
target 

.DRE240:  Difference between progression rate of BME and non-BME 
employee below target 

DRE385: Agency spend as % of total salary bill (Resources) well below 
target 

LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
Title Target status 
DRE129a:  % of target hours recorded on all legal work for in-house and 
external clients ("Chargeable hours") above target 

DRE213:  Legal Services agency spend as % of total salary bill well below 
target 

DRE260:  % of births registered within 42 days On target 

DRE261:  % of deaths registered within 5 working days well below 
target 

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION (ICT) 
Title Target status 

DRE111:  Percentage "first call fix" on the ICT Service Desk well below 
target 

DRE150:   Number of critical security issues found during network health 
checks 

well below 
target 

DRE165:  Average time taken to resolve a Priority 1 incident well above 
target 

DRE183:  Number of transactions performed online on BCC website well above 
target 

COMMERCIALISATION &  CITIZEN’S SERVICES 
Title Target status 

BCP327:  % Corporate FOI requests responded to within 20 working days well below 
target 

BCP328:  Increase the percentage of stage 1 non-statutory complaints 
that we respond to within 15 days below target 

DRE225:  % channel shift achieved for Citizens Services overall above target 

OVERALL SUMMARY: 
 
 

46% (11) PI’s On / 
Above target 

54% (13) PI’s Below 
target 

 

P
age 50



Appendix A1

Corp Plan 
Link

Code Title +/-
2017/18 
outturn

2018/19 
Target

Q1 Progress Q2 Progress Q3 Progress
Comparison 
over last 12 

months

Responsible 
Manager

Officer Notes

WOP2 .BCP327
% Corporate FOI requests responded to within 20 working 
days

+ 80.5% 100.0% 76.4% 75.0% 79.1%  Rizwan Tariq
Volumes received and performance levels are consistent with previous periods.  Hitting the target will 
be assisted by the installation of an improved electronic case management system as well as the 
planned introduction of smarter data retention policies.

WOP2 .BCP328
Increase the percentage of stage 1 non-statutory complaints 
that we respond to within 15 days

+ 87.0% 90.0% 83.7% 86.0% 87.4%  Rizwan Tariq
Just short of target in the last period - hitting the Stage 1 complaints target will be assisted by the 
installation of an improved electronic case management system as well as the planned introduction of 
smarter data retention policies.

WOP1 .DRE224 Percentage of telephone calls answered within the CSC + 84.7% 85.0% 83.7% 85.9% 86.3%  Rizwan Tariq
The CSC is above target for Q2. This is mainly down to having a full establishment within the CSC 
teams. 

WOP1 .DRE225 % channel shift achieved for Citizens Services overall + 27.3% 30.0% 30.9% 31.9% 30.5%  Rizwan Tariq Figure shown is the quarterly total. Monthly figure for Dec is 32.57% 

WOP2 .DRE111 Percentage "first call fix" on the ICT Service Desk + 50.5% 60.0% 45.2% 48.0% 48.0%  Ian Gale

1st time fix remains lower than the target. Again we have had changes in resources, resulting in new 
temporary recruitment and subsequent training. Volumes of Incidents remain 15% up on the previous 
year, adding upwards of 200 extra Incidents per period above the Incident target, both these continue 
to have a detrimental effect on the actual 1st time fix figure of 48%. 

WOP2 .DRE150
Number of critical security issues found during network health 
checks

- 5 0 6 6 6  Matthew King
Network Health Test carried out in June 2018 (reported last 2 quarters) and identified 6 critical security 
issues. ICT are actively engaged on resolving the Critical issues, however there are complex 
dependencies.

WOP2 .DRE151
% of critical security issues found during network health check 
fixed within 3 months

+ n/a 100% 0% 0% n/a Matthew King
An in-depth review of IT Security arrangements has been commissioned. In the meantime, resources 
are focussed on Server 2003 decommissioning work essential to Public Services Network accreditation. 

WOP2 .DRE165 Average time taken to resolve a Priority 1 incident - 4.6 hrs 4.0 hrs 3.4 hrs 2.7 hrs 3.4 hrs  Ian Gale

Q1-Q3 = 23 incidents.  P1 Resolution performance (at 3.4 hrs) well within target of 4 hours. This target 
represents general industry standard for Priority 1 incidents.  Calculation for Q3 = 37.8 hrs / 11 P1 
Incidents = 3.4 hrs Average time to close a P1 Incident.  NOTE DUE TO HIGH P1 AVERAGE CLOSURE 
TIME IN DECEMBER 2018:  2 Priority 1 Incidents raised in December 2018:  5/12/2018 - I:113561, 
IWorld outage / corrupt data, required a new back up and support from Celerity, actually took 2.5 days 
(22 working hours) to resolve.  27/12/2018 - I:114529, AVAYA ICX Desktop failure, incorrect process 
followed by 4net when carrying out fortnightly patching resulted in some services not being restarted. 
2 hours to resolve by the 3rd party supplier, 4net. Note the IWORLD failure which took 2.5 days to 
resolve adversely affected the average being only taken across 2 Incidents, hence, an unusually high 
number.

WOP2 .DRE166 Average time taken to resolve a Priority 2 incident - 4.5 hrs 8.0 hrs 3.8 hrs 3.6 hrs 3.6 hrs  Ian Gale
60 P2's have been reported and logged (Q1 = 54, Q2 = 55, Q3 = 51), averaging 3.63 hrs across all 3 
Periods, which is well below the KPI target for closing P2's.

WOP2 .DRE183 Number of transactions performed online on BCC website + 228,668 200,000 69,385 156,532 227,643  Tracy Dodds
No of online forms (liferay and orbeon) submitted in Q3 is 71,111 17.8% higher than same Q3 period in 
2017/18 showing greater take up by citizens and increased number of digital services available. 

WOP4 .BCP501a
Projected forecast outturn as a percentage of approved 
budget (BCC)

- n/a 100.0% 102.2% 100.1% 100.0% n/a
Chris  Holme, 

Denise  Murray
Forecast outturn in line with budget.

WOP5 .BCP501b Forecast level of reserves (BCC) + 5.47% 5.00% 5.62% 5.53% 5.50%  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

Forecast level of general reserves against planned, as per the approved budget, as a percentage of the 
net General Fund Budget – the target is assessed as the minimum level below which the general 
reserve should not fall below in 2018/19. An appropriate level of reserves is required to ensure 
sustainability and financial resilience.

Resources - Commercialisation & Citizens

Resources EDM / Scrutiny - 3rd Quarter Performance Progress Report (1 April '18 - 31 December '18)

Resources - Digital Transformation

Resources - Finance

P
age 51



Corp Plan 
Link

Code Title +/-
2017/18 
outturn

2018/19 
Target

Q1 Progress Q2 Progress Q3 Progress
Comparison 
over last 12 

months

Responsible 
Manager

Officer Notes

WOP4 .BCP502 Increase the percentage of invoices paid on time (BCC) + 78.5% 96.0% 81.2% 81.0% 81.5%  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

We are in the process of introducing a number of measures aimed significantly improving 
performance, however whilst there has been some improvement in performance, there are still a 
number of issues to overcome. Improvements include;
1) Improve reporting framework with analysis of reasons for late payments 2) Regular report/update to 
EDMs 3) Simplification of guidance to staff and 4) Improve compliance arrangements. We are hoping to 
see significant improvement in the year ahead.

WOP4 .BCP503 Increase the percentage of Council Tax collected + 96.8% 96.8% 28.2% 55.1% 83.1%  Martin Smith

Council Tax collection for December shows as 0.07% ahead of target, equivalent to a surplus of 
£163k.The Council Tax debit, from Annual billing in April, has seen an increase of £673k to December. 
The number of Council tax outstanding work items remains higher than previous years due to system 
downtime. It is anticipated that additional resource will be available in the final quarter to ensure year 
end collection remains on target.
An increase in council payers paying over twelve months, instead of ten, required the monthly 
collection profile to change, hence the comparrison in J showing a drop from the previous year. 

WOP4 .BCP504 Increase the percentage of non-domestic rates collected + 97.9% 98.2% 28.0% 57.0% 83.3%  Martin Smith

Business Rates collection for November 2018 shows as 0.5% ahead of target, equivalent to an excess of 
£1.17m. At this point it is anticipated that year end collection will be in excess of last year's final 
outturn.  An increase in business rate payers paying over twelve months, instead of ten, required the 
monthly collection profile to change, hence the comparison in J showing a drop from the previous year.

WOP4 .BCP505
Increase the percentage of procurement spend with 'Small 
and Medium sized Enterprises' (SME's)

+ 38.2% 40.0% n/a n/a n/a n/a
Martyn 

Wordsworth

We are currently confident that the target will be achieved. A number of practical steps have been 
taken to maximise opportunities for SMEs in the supply chain such as:   • early market engagement 
(and promoting these opportunities to SMEs through our E-procurement solution);   • encouraging 
SMEs to network with prospective bidders (where they can't/won't bid independently);   • streamlining 
the bidding process (to ensure is proportionate to the value and risk of the contract);   • using 
frameworks and DPSs (where appropriate – allowing bidders to bid for smaller contracts);  •contracts 
will be split into smaller 'Lots' to encourage local competition and SME participation, issuing low value 
quick quote opportunities to a minimum of 3 suppliers (where possible we will invite offers from at 
least 3 local suppliers ;   • reducing the turnover cap (applicable to the assessment of financial 
standing/risk).To ensure, so far as reasonably practicable, that suppliers are paid within 30 days on 
receipt of invoice, this will include payments due by our contractors to their sub-contractors. An early 
payment programme is to be considered by BCC.•Simpler and standardised approach to 
procurement.•Tenders will also include social value criteria which will include how suppliers intend to 
support local businesses, including jobs, skills, capability development and wider community 
benefits.•Tender specifications will be designed to provide opportunities for SMEs by ensuring they are 
tailored to actively encourage tender responses.

WOP4 .DRE356
Reduction during the year in opening balances of general 
debtors debt (BCC)

+ 66.78% 90.00% 49.16% 57.38% 63.55%  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

Q2 target = 85%. The opening balance as at 1st April of general debtors debt was £34.4m.  As at 31st 
December, 63.55% of debt has been recovered (£21.9m), an increase on the same period last year 
(62.23%). Whilst the target continues to prove challenging project work is underway to investigating 
alternative methods to improve collection performance.

WOP4 .DRE357a Value of rolling year debt to be collected (BCC) - £127,166,076 £133,405,284 £128,725,795 £138,018,164  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

Overall value of debt is up £17m on figure at this point last year.

WOP4 .DRE357b Level (%) of rolling year debt collected (BCC) + 91.54% 90.00% 87.37% 91.41% 83.13%  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

Overall value of invoices processed has increased by £17m compared to this point last year. Current 
figure includes 2 NHS invoices to the value of £8.6m which are still outstanding, and which are subject 
to ongoing discussion with the CCG. There are also 5 PFI charge invoices raised for £1m+ and being 
paid in instalments. These constitute the difference between current performance and meeting the 
target. Expectations are these will be resolved by end of year and the target will be met. 

WOP4 .DRE357c Total uncollected rolling year debt (BCC) - £10,761,120 £16,846,583 £11,056,716 £23,280,517  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

Overall value of debt outstanding up £3m on this point last year however this is a reflection of the 
overall increase in debit by £17m as collection performance is on a par.

WOP4 .DRE358 % P2P invoices paid with a retrospective order (Resources) - 24.6% 15.0% 30.3% 25.6% 24.8%  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

During Q1-3, 3,939 invoices were paid with a retrospective order in Resources and can be broken down 
as follows:  Legal & DS: 779, Digital Transformation: 650, HR, Workforce & Org.Design: 363, Finance: 
63, Policy, Strategy & Partnerships: 67, Capital - Bus Change: 11 & Commercialisation & Citizens: 2006.      
1,802 of the 3,939 RO invoices (46%) were paid late and is one of the main factors in failing to achieve 
the payment target. 

P
age 52



Corp Plan 
Link

Code Title +/-
2017/18 
outturn

2018/19 
Target

Q1 Progress Q2 Progress Q3 Progress
Comparison 
over last 12 

months

Responsible 
Manager

Officer Notes

WOP4 .DRE359 % purchasing completed without a PO number (Resources) - 13.6% 0.0% 13.3% 15.7% 6.4%  Chris  Holme, 
Denise  Murray

During Q1-3, 1,009 invoices were paid without a PO number in Resources, this is broken down as 
follows:  Digital Transformation: 536, Finance: 448, Legal and DS: 12 and HR, Workplace & Org Design 
4.  

WOP4 .DRE420 Delivery of the Internal Audit plan to at least draft stage + n/a 90.0% 10.0% 30.0% 50.0% n/a Jonathan Idle

The delivery of the Audit Plan in 2018/19 has been adversely affected by very challenging recruitment 
factors, particularly in the recruitment of qualified auditors at current pay rates. Mitigating actions 
have been completed in terms of recruitment, both permanent and temporary between November 
2018 and January 2019. This provides the basis for the delivery of sufficient audit coverage to ensure 
the delivery of an Annual Audit Opinion in time for the collation of the report for the May Audit 
Committee. Quarter 4 delivery is always disproportionately higher than Q1-Q3.

WOP4 .DRE421
Level of Internal Audit recommendation implementation 
(Fully / Partial)

+ 69.0% 90.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0%  Jonathan Idle

The target is largely dependent upon the extent of implementation of IA recommendations by 
managers across the Council. The concerns relating to this indicator are reported regularly and at the 
Audit Committee on 21/01/19, it was reported that: "Despite increased engagement by the Internal 
Audit service in this area, including quarterly updates to all Directorate EDM's, over the last 12 months 
and while understanding the challenges involved for managers, the performance of the organisation in 
the consistent and full implementation of Internal Audit recommendations continues to be an area in 
need of improvement. Both management and the Audit Committee need to monitor this consistently 
with acceleration and appropriate action to have greater assurance that agreed improvements to 
internal control are actually fully implemented within reasonable timescales. " The Audit Committee 
now will be calling in managers where there is not a reasonable explanation for non-implementation.

WOP4 .DRE422
Delivery of Audit Opinion to Management, Audit Committee 
in time to inform the AGS

+ n/a Yes n/a n/a Yes n/a Jonathan Idle The target was completed in May 2018 as reported to the Audit Committee on 31/05/18.

WOP4 .DRE423
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) delivered in line with 
statutory deadlines

+ n/a Yes n/a n/a Yes n/a Jonathan Idle
The target was completed in July 2018 with draft AGS reported to Audit Committee on 31/05/18 and 
final AGS to Audit Committee on 26/07/18.

WOP4 .DRE619 Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit claims - 26.99 days 22.00 days 23.61 days 22.11 days 17.80 days  Graham Clapp
The service has been consistently under the target of 22 days, since August 2018 to date. In addition it 
has been under 19 days for the last four consecutive months.

WOP4 .DRE620
Average time taken to process changes to existing Housing 
Benefit claims

- 15.72 days 9.00 days 9.39 days 10.31 days 10.43 days  Graham Clapp
Although the service has exceeded this target, cumulative performance since mid November has been 
9.76 days and the last 2 months have been below target.

WOP2 .DRE129a
% of target hours recorded on all legal work for in-house and 
external clients ("Chargeable hours")

+ 93.89% 100.00% 101.40% 102.63% 104.22%  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

All teams working in excess of target hours (i.e. productive hours on legal case-work)  FTE staff have a 
target of 1354 hours per year, (this was commercially benchmarked)

WOP4 .DRE211 Legal Services - Income vs Target + £1,213,631 £1,292,320 £360,000 £412,773 £1,007,545  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Main income source is increasingly from internal recharge due to in-house demand; the income also 
supports engagement of locums/overspend on budget for agency lawyers.

WOP1 .DRE212 Legal Services spend on external barristers - £591,712 £526,970 £84,780 £184,074 £307,304  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Use of external barristers across the service is variable but we are seeing an increase in spend in 
litigation work.  Child protection work is as expected and due to the increase amount of internally 
recharged work, barristers fees for commercial work are recharged.  This is accounted for by 
adjustments in next year's budget.

WOP1 .DRE213 Legal Services agency spend as % of total salary bill - 22.2% 17.0% 21.0% 22.1% 29.8%  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Some agency spend is due to vacancy cover and is mostly covered by unspent salary budget.  Some 
agency spend is to back-fill for team members who undertake dedicated work on major projects such 
as City Leap.  The aim of the Service is to reduce or recharge for agency spend.  (Salary expenditure to 
date £2,102,010. Agency expenditure to date £626,614) (JF)

WOP2 .DRE214a
Number of court claims in which BCC has costs awarded 
against it 

- 1 MI only 0 2 1  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Q3: KA8.178 - (£61,015) Judicial Review against SEN spending cuts  (NB Court Orders for costs were 
some months earlier, these figures are inserted in the quarter in which they are ascertained and paid)

WOP2 .DRE214b Total sum of costs awarded against BCC - £11,367 MI only £0 £0 £61,015  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Q2: DN5.350 (£16,000) & (£6,525) - both Housing claims with costs awarded to Shelter   Q3: KA8.178 - 
(£61,015) Judicial Review against SEN spending cuts  (NB Court Orders for costs were some months 
earlier, these figures are inserted in the Q in which they are ascertained and paid)

WOP2 .DRE215a
Number of court claims in which BCC has costs awarded in its 
favour

+ 74 MI only 189 497 278  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Costs awarded to BCC for legal fees - multiple cases, most of the cases are education and environment 
prosecution cases.  In Q3:   38% of the value of the cost awards were for environmental littering 
prosecutions, 19% for education prosecutions and 43% for other prosecution and civil cases.

Resources - Legal and Democratic Services

P
age 53



Corp Plan 
Link

Code Title +/-
2017/18 
outturn

2018/19 
Target

Q1 Progress Q2 Progress Q3 Progress
Comparison 
over last 12 

months

Responsible 
Manager

Officer Notes

WOP2 .DRE215b Total sum of costs awarded in favour of BCC + £40,616 MI only £51,546 £55,715 £62,373  Jane Johnson, 
Nancy Rollason

Costs awarded to BCC for legal fees - multiple cases, most of the cases are education and environment 
prosecution cases.  In Q3:   38% of the value of the cost awards were for environmental littering 
prosecutions,  19% for education prosecutions and 3% for other prosecution and civil cases. 

WOP2 .DRE260 % of births registered within 42 days + 97.0% 98.0% 97.4% 97.9% 98.0% 
Yvonne Dawes, 

Elizabeth 
Matthews

In April - December 8293  Births were registered within the required 42 day period - compliance 98.%   
719 in December2018- 19 exceptions therefore 97.36% compliance in December  Measures have been 
put in place to remind parents to register the birth within six weeks.  

WOP2 .DRE261 % of deaths registered within 5 working days + 65.00% 90.00% 68.00% 74.00% 77.00% 
Yvonne Dawes, 

Elizabeth 
Matthews

National average is 80%, and the SW regional average is 73%. Bristol are currently performing at 77% 
to the end of December. This is an improving picture and a lot of work is being undertaken including 
'lean' process analysis, significantly improved appointment availability and work with partner agencies. 
The Register Office does not however have complete control of the whole process.

WOP2 .DRE411 Communication Campaign effectiveness (%) + 95.0% 80.0% 95.0% 87.5% 90.0%  Saskia  
Konynenburg

Budget consultation PR/comms met and exceeded 3 objectives out of 3. Apprenticeship You're Hired 
jobs fair met 2 objectives out of 3. Quality of Life survey comms support met 4 objectives out of 4. The 
campaigns therefore met 9 objectives out of 10 set - 90%.  

WOP2 .DRE572
Increase consultation response from under represented 
communities

+ n/a
Establish 
baseline

n/a n/a n/a n/a Tim Borrett

Work is currently ongoing to develop a suite of measures to understand the impact of our consultation 
process on our community and how we can improve responses from under-represented groups .  
Proposed indicators include the following:  1) Total number of respondents across all closed 
consultations  2) Equalities distribution (in development) – this will measure the response rate by 
equalities characteristics  3) Geographical distribution (in development) – this will measure the 
response rate by ward or deprivation decile (tbc)  Both 2 and 3 above will only use citywide 
consultations with over 1000 respondents (e.g. Budget, Adult social care etc.) as the data source.

WOP1 .BCP520
Increase the percentage of colleagues who would recommend 
the council as a place to work

+  50.00% n/a n/a n/a n/a Stephanie Griffin

The last employee survey was carried out in 2016/17 and showed that 40% of colleagues recommend 
the council as a place to work.  The next survey will be run in March 2019 when a new baseline and 
targets will be set.  The results of the survey will be analysed and an action plan produced as part of 
the Organisational Improvement Plan.  The survey proposal was noted by HR Committee in November 
2018, the survey questions are currently being designed and tested with staff focus groups, and will be 
shared with HR committee before launch.

WOP2 .BCP521
Increase % of colleagues reporting they have the right tools to 
do their job effectively/efficiently

+ n/a 60.00% n/a n/a n/a n/a Stephanie Griffin
This will be a new question for the 2019 employee survey, following which a baseline and target will be 
set. The results of the survey will be analysed and an action plan produced as part of the Organisational 
Improvement Plan.

WOP3 .BCP522
Reduce the average number of working days lost to sickness 
(BCC)

- 9.10 days 8.00 days 9.25 days 9.26 days 9.41 days  Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

Sickness is at its highest level since 2010. We have the 5th lowest sickness absence figure 
benchmarked against to core cities comparators. Higher sickness absence in the Council is related to a 
number of factors: it employs more older people and women, both of whom tend to have higher rates 
of sickness absence; it is more likely to employ staff with a long-standing health condition who are 
more likely to go off sick and tends to offer more generous sick pay arrangements. improving the 
health and wellbeing of our workforce is a key organisational priority and is a key feature of our 
organisational improvement plan. HR are working with managers at all evels to further develop:   • 
Positive and supportive workplace culture,   • Good people management practices,  • Raise safety 
awareness and maintain a health workplace,  • Proactive management of casework,  • Policies that 
take a holistic approach to health and wellbeing, and   • Improved staff engagement and wellbeing that 
will reduce sickness absence.

WOP1 .BCP523 Maintain staff turnover - 14.6% 12.5% 15.5% 14.2% 14.3%  Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

Target = 10-15%.  There has been a positive trend in retention over the last 12 months and continues 
to show improvement compared to the same period last year (16.4%). 

Resources - Workforce & Change

Resources - Policy & Strategy

P
age 54



Corp Plan 
Link

Code Title +/-
2017/18 
outturn

2018/19 
Target

Q1 Progress Q2 Progress Q3 Progress
Comparison 
over last 12 

months

Responsible 
Manager

Officer Notes

WOP2 .BCP524
Increase % employees starting their 'My Performance' 18/19 
review form (BCC)

+ n/a 100% 34% 46% 46% n/a
Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

The current system used for recording results of performance reviews has been in place since 2015 and 
will be replaced by iTrent in April 2019 as part of the roll-out of a new single HR and Payroll system. 
There has been inconsistent use of the current system owing to a complex sign off functionality (with 
completion rates appearing lower than they actually are), lack of integration with other HR and payroll 
systems and the use of other off-line systems.    To address this, one of the main priorities in the 
Organisational Improvement Plan is to design and implement a new performance management 
strategy to increase the levels of participation and quality of performance reviews. This will be 
accompanied by support and training on how to have effective conversations, and good practice in 
setting performance objectives as part of developing a strong performance culture which is being led 
by the senior leadership team. This proposal was reviewed by HR Committee and members of 
Resources Scrutiny committee in January.

WOP3 .BCP527
Increase the % of employees that live in the 10% most 
deprived areas

+ 6.2%
Establish 

benchmark
6.5% 6.4% 6.4% n/a

Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

 399 employees live in the 10% most deprived areas as at 31 December 2018. We are committed to 
increasing the number of employees who work for us from these communities and there  is much 
more work to be done. Our Education and Skills colleagues support pathways to work such as 
apprenticeships are targeted at these communities as well as Job Fairs and Job Days. We will also be 
developing targeted recruitment campaigns as part of our organisational improvement plan.

WOP1 .DRE134a
Number of working days lost due to sickness absence 
(Resources)

- 6.23 8 6.21 6.08 8.56 n/a
Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

The rise in sickness levels can be attributed to the change in make-up of the Directorate after a 
corporate restructure. This number is therefore not comparable with the previous one (6.08).

WOP3 .DRE240
Difference between progression rate of BME and non-BME 
employee

+ -1.27% 0.00% -0.30% -0.40% -0.10%  Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

BME progression rate 2.00%  Non-BME progression rate 2.13%    139 staff members were promoted 
during Q3.  The progression rate for BME staff was 2.00% and for non-BME staff was 2.13%. We are 
focusing on the following actions to improve this indicator:    Support the work on tackling the race pay 
gap – looking at progression, pay, recruitment and flexible working.     Continue and expand our 
'Stepping Up' partnership programme for aspiring BAME leaders, extending it to other under-
represented groups.    Review and refine the provision of learning on diversity, equalities and inclusion 
– aligned to objectives in equalities and inclusion strategy – and to build workforce knowledge and 
skills on equality and inclusion. 

WOP3 .DRE241 Difference between progression rate of Women and Men + -0.14% 0.00% 3.30% 0.10% -0.20%  Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

Female progression rate 2.16%  Male progression rate 2.32%    139 staff members were promoted 
during Q3.  We are focusing on the following actions to improve this indicator:   Support the work on 
tackling the gender pay gap – looking at progression, pay, recruitment and flexible working. Continue
 and expand our 'Stepping Up' partnership programme for aspiring BAME leaders, extending it to other
 under-represented groups.    Review and refine the provision of learning on diversity, equalities and
 inclusion – aligned to objectives in equalities and inclusion strategy – and to build workforce
 knowledge and skills on equality and inclusion.

WOP3 .DRE242 Percentage of top earners who are women + 60.70% 60.37% 57.26% 57.30% 55.81%  Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

353 top earners (197 female; 156 male).  An employee with an FTE salary of £44,697 or greater is 
categorised in the top 5% of earners.    As at 31 December 2018 there were 197 (55.81%) females and 
156 (44.19%) males in the top 5% of earners.  This is below the target of 60.37% which reflects the 
percentage of female employees in post as at 31st March 2018. We are focusing on the following 
actions to improve this indicator:    Support the work on tackling the race pay gap – looking at 
progression, pay, recruitment and flexible working.     Continue and expand our 'Stepping Up' 
partnership programme for aspiring BAME leaders, extending it to other under-represented groups.    
Embed the Leadership Framework which sets out standards for existing leaders and giving aspiring 
leaders a clear set of skills and competencies to develop. 

WOP1 .DRE385 Agency spend as % of total salary bill (Resources) - 9.5% 5.0% 8.4% 10.3% 9.2% n/a
Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

Due to corporate restructure, figures are not comparable with last year. During Q2-Q3 9.2% of salary 
costs can be attributed to agency costs in Resources, equivalent to £1.42m. This is in comparison with 
£2.15m during Q2. Agency costs for BCC as a whole in Q3 were 5.3% (£2.86m). Most costs are a result 
of dealing with short term transformation projects where it wouldn't be practical to appoint salaried 
staff.

WOP1 .DRE386 Overtime spend as % of total salary bill (Resources) - 0.10% 0.50% 0.10% 0.10% 0.50%  Mark Jefferson, 
Mark Williams

During Q1-Q2 0.5% of salary costs can be attributed to overtime in Resources, equivalent to £79k. 
Overtime costs for BCC as a whole were 0.6% (£345k).

P
age 55



Corp Plan 
Link

Code Title +/-
2017/18 
outturn

2018/19 
Target

Q1 Progress Q2 Progress Q3 Progress
Comparison 
over last 12 

months

Responsible 
Manager

Officer Notes



Corporate Strategy - Key Commitments

EC1
EC2
EC3
EC4

FI1
FI2
FI3
FI4

W1
W2
W3
W4

WC1
WC2
WC3
WC4

WOP1
WOP2
WOP3
WOP4

Equip our colleagues to be as productive and efficient as possible.
Make sure we have an inclusive, high-performing, healthy and motivated workforce.
Be responsible financial managers and explore new commercial ideas.

Improve physical and geographical connectivity; tackling congestion and progressing towards a mass transit system.
Make progress towards being the UK’s best digitally connected city.
Reduce social and economic isolation and help connect people to people, people to jobs and people to opportunity.
Work with cultural partners to involve citizens in the ‘Bristol’ story, giving everyone in the city a stake in our long-term strategies and sense of connection.

Workplace Organisational Priorities
Redesign the council to work effectively as a smaller organisation.

Well-Connected

Prioritise community development and enable people to support their community.
Fair & Inclusive

Make sure that 2,000 new homes (800 affordable) are built in Bristol each year by 2020.
Improve educational outcomes and reduce educational inequality, whilst ensuring there are enough school places to meet demand and with a transparent admissions process.
Develop a diverse economy that offers opportunity to all and makes quality work experience and apprenticeships available to every young person.
Help develop balanced communities which are inclusive and avoid negative impacts from gentrification.

Wellbeing
Embed health in all our policies to improve physical and mental health 
and wellbeing, reducing inequalities and the demand for acute services.
Keep Bristol on course to be run entirely on clean energy by 2050 whilst improving our environment to ensure people enjoy cleaner air, cleaner streets and access to parks and green spaces.
Tackle food and fuel poverty.
Keep Bristol a leading cultural city, helping make culture, sport and play accessible to all.

Provide ‘help to help yourself’ and ‘help when you need it’ through a sustainable, safe and diverse system of social care and safeguarding provision, with a focus on early help and intervention.

On Target SAME as previous same period in the previous year

Below Target  Direction of travel WORSENED compared to same period in the previous year
Well Below Target

Empowering & Caring
Give our children the best start in life by protecting and developing children’s centre services, being great corporate parents and protecting children from exploitation or harm.
Reduce the overall level of homelessness and rough sleeping, with no-one needing to spend a ‘second night out’.

Progress Key Improvement  Key
Well Above Target  Direction of travel IMPROVED compared to same period in the previous year

Above Target

P
age 56

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/2538890/BCC+Business+Plan+2018+to+2019/991563a4-0a67-de02-ce3a-fc8b47247824


Legal & Democratic Service DMT Q3 Performance Report
2018/19

Code Title +/-
2017/18
Outturn

2018/19 Target Q1 Act Q2 Act Q3 Act
Comparison
over last 12

months

Responsible
Manager

Officer Notes

.DRE129a
% of target hours recorded on all legal
work for in-house and external clients
("Chargeable hours")

+ 93.89% 100.00% 101.40% 102.63%
104.22%

(above target) 5 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

All teams working in excess of target hours (i.e. productive hours on legal case-work)  FTE staff have a
target that was commercially benchmarked.

.DRE211 Legal Services - Income vs Target + (above target) 5 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

income source includes internal recharge for non-core work and external client work; the income also
supports engagement of locums/overspend on budget for agency lawyers

.DRE212
Legal Services spend on external
barristers

- £591,712 £526,970 £84,780 £184,074
£307,304
(well above

target) 5 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

Use of external barristers across the service is variable but we are seeing an increase in spend in litigation
work.  Child protection work is as expected and due to the increase amount of interally recharged work,
barristers fees for commercial work are recharged.  This is accounted for by adjustments in next year's
budget.

.DRE213
Legal Services agency spend as % of total
salary bill

- 22.2% 17.0% 21.0% 22.1%
29.8%

(well below
target) 6 Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason

Some agency spend is due to vacancy cover and is mostly covered by unspent salary budget.  Some agency
spend is to back-fill for team members who undertake dedicated work on major projects.  The aim of the
Service is to reduce or recharge for agency spend.

.DRE214a
Number of court claims in which BCC has
costs awarded against it

- 1 MI only 0 2 1 1 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

Q2: - both Housing claims with costs awarded
Q3: Judicial Review re SEN budget

.DRE214b Total sum of costs awarded against BCC - 6 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

See DRE214a above

.DRE215a
Number of court claims in which BCC has
costs awarded in its favour

+ 74 MI only 189 497 278 5 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

Costs awarded to BCC for legal fees - multiple cases, most of the cases are education and environment
prosecution cases.  In Q3:
38% of the value of the cost awards were for environmental littering prosecutions,
19% for education prosecutions and
43% for other prosecution and civil cases.

.DRE215b
Total sum of costs awarded in favour of
BCC

+ 5 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

See DRE215a above

.DRE260 % of births registered within 42 days + 97.0% 98.0% 97.4% 97.9%
98%

(on target) 5 Yvonne Dawes,
Elizabeth Matthews

In April - December 8293  Births were registered within the required 42 day period - compliance 98.%   719
in December2018- 19 exceptions therefore 97.36% compliance in December  Measures have been put in
place to remind parents to register the birth within six weeks.

.DRE261
% of deaths registered within 5 working
days

+ 65.0% 90.0% 68.0% 74.0%
77%

(well below
target) 5 Yvonne Dawes,

Elizabeth Matthews

No of deaths registered in April - December with an MCCD =2354,  1812(77%) were registered within 5
working days  542(23%) were NOT registered within 5 working days    No of deaths registered in December
with an MCCD = 295,  226(76.7%) were registered within 5 working days  69 (23.3%) were NOT registered
within 5 working days.

RE128 Customer satisfaction with Legal Services + 100.0% 90.0% 100.0% 100.0%
100%

(well above
target) 1 Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason
Assessed from information on client satisfaction questionnaires and other client feedback received;
predominantly from in-house.

RE129b
% Chargeable hours spent on external
billable work

+ 2.96% (2/4) MI only 1.56% 5.52% 5.34% 5 Jane Johnson, Nancy
Rollason

RE129c
% Chargeable hours spent on internal
rechargeable work

+ n/a MI only 16.70% 9.01% 9.63% n/a
Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason

RE216a Total number of new cases received OFF 1,045 MI only 903 1,095 1,010 n/a
Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason
Total number of new cases opened on Norwel across Legal Services for the period

RE216b
% increase in number of new cases
received (compared to same period last
year)

OFF 52.50% MI only 15.80% 61.30% 37.00% n/a
Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason
Increase in numbers of new instructions/cases received by Legal Services during the period when
compared with the same period as last year.

RE216c
Number of new cases requesting
completion in less than 10 working days

- 1,124 MI only 274 522 779 n/a
Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason
Qtr 1: 274  Qtr 2: 248  Qtr 3: 257

RE217
Number of cases on Legal Services' High
Risk Register

- 56 (2/4) MI only 56 47 26 n/a
Jane Johnson, Nancy

Rollason
C&G Team 11 , Property Team 4 , CP Team 7 , Litigation 4 Qtr3 Figures

RE347
% Land Charge searches completed
within 10 working days

+ n/a 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% no data given n/a Yvonne Dawes no narrative received

P
age 57


	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting & Action Sheet
	6 December 2018 RSC Minutes
	10 Jan 2019 RSC Budget Meeting Minutes
	14 Jan 2019 RSC 2nd Budget Meeting Minutes
	RSC Action Tracker - 28th February 2019

	7 Work Programme
	8 Performance Management
	10 Commercialisation Strategy and Programme
	12 Performance Report - Quarter 3 - Part Exempt
	Q3 2018-19 Resources Scrutiny
	Resources EDM 2018

	2018_19 Legal Services (Q3 Progress Report)


